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BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 

Dalal Street, Fort, 

Mumbai 400 001 

Scrip code: 509449 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Sub: Compliance of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirement ) Requlation. 

We are hereby submitting the copy of the Annual Report of the Company for 

the financial year 2024-25 along with the Notice of the 53rd Annual General 

Meeting of the company to be held on Friday, 26th September, 2025. 

The Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 is uploaded on the 

website of the Company (https://www.globalbol.com/) 

Thanking you, 

Yours faithfully, 

For Bhagawati Oxygen Ltd. 

Digitally signed by 
RITU RITU DAMANI 

Date: 2025.08.30 
DAMANI 15:44:13 +05'30' 

Ritu Damani 

(Company Secretary) 

Encl: As above. 
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 
67, PARK STREET, KOLKATA-700 016 (INDIA) 

NOTICE 

TO THE MEMBERS 

Notice is hereby given that the 53rd Annual General Meeting of BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED will be held on 

Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 03:00 P.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at Plot No. 5, Sector- 25, 

Ballabhgarh, Haryana- 121004, to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 

31, 2025, together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Bipinbihari Lal (DIN:01045250) who retires by rotation at this Annual 

General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

By the Order of the Board 
BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

Qily Damon 
RITU DAMANI 

COMPANY SECRETARY 

ACS: 35435 
Date:30.05.2025 

Place: Kolkata 

Notes: 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) is entitled to appoint a 

proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of him/ her and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The 

instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less 

than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the meeting. A person can act a proxy on behalf of members 

not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the 

Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the 

Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for 

any other person or shareholder. 

2. Attendance slip, proxy form and the route map of the venue of the Meeting are annexed hereto. 

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representative(s) to attend the Meeting are requested to 

send to the Company a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with the specimen 

signature(s) of the representative(s) authorised under the said Board Resolution to attend and vote on their behalf 

at the Meeting. 

4. Members/ Proxies/ Authorised Representatives are requested to bring to the Meeting necessary details of their 

shareholding, attendance slip(s) and copies of Annual Report. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the 
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Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the 

Company will be entitled to vote. 

5. As amended by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 

2018 dated June 08, 2018, members holding shares in physical form are mandatorily required to dematerialize 

  

their holding in order to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares. Members can contact Skyline 

Financial Services Pvt. Ltd for further assistance. 

6. Members who hold shares in the dematerialized form are requested to bring their Depository[D Number and 

Client ID numbers to facilitate easier identification of attendance at the Annual General Meeting. 

7. Messrs Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd has been appointed as Registrars and Share Transfer Agents for both 

physical and dematerialized shares of the Company. 

8. Members are informed that the scrip of the Company are activated both on CDSL and NSDL and may be 

dematerialized under the ISIN No. INE026101010. 

9. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from, Saturday, 20th 

September, 2025 to Friday, 26th September, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General 

Meeting. 

10. The instrument of transfer completed in all respect together with requisite enclosure, should be sent to the 

Company well in advance so as to reach the Company prior to closure of Register of Members 

11. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank 

mandates to their Depository Participants (“DPs”) with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 

Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates 

to the Company / Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents, i.e. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 

12. For any further information regarding accounts intimation may be given to the Company in writing at least 10 

days in advance from the date of the aforesaid meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information 

ready. 

13. Members holding shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by 

them. The prescribed form can be obtained/ submitted to Registrar & Share Transfer Agents of the Company. 

14. In the light of the green initiative of the Government of India, those members who have not yet registered their 

email ids are requested to register their email id’s with their depository participants in case of shares held in 

dematerialised form and those members holding shares in physical form to register their email id’s with the R & 

T agent for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company 

electronically. We urge upon you to register the email id on priority and help the Company to support the nation 

in the green initiative. 

15. Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid 

and unclaimed amounts lying with Companies Rules, 2012, the Company has NIL amount unpaid and unclaimed 

with the Company as on 26" September, 2024 (date of last Annual General Meeting) and the Company has 

declared the same with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs website.



  

16. Pursuant to the relaxations provided vide General Circular No.09/2024 dated 19.09.2024, issued by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, read with the General Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD-1/P/CIR/2025/83 

dated 05.06.2025, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), from Regulation 36(1)(b) of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR Regulations”) which 

requires sending hard copy of Annual Report containing salient features of all the documents prescribed in 

Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the shareholders who have not registered their email addresses, 

the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2024-25, including the notice of the 53rd Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) and instruction for e-voting along with proxy form and attendance slip are being sent by 

electronic mode to the members whose email-id is registered with the Company/ Depository Participant unless a 

member has requested for a physical copy of the document. The notice of the AGM published by advertisement 

in terms of Regulation 47 of LODR Regulations, contains a link to the Annual Report, so as to enable 

shareholders to have access to the full Annual Report. 

17. Members may also note that the notice of the 53rd AGM and Annual Report 2024-25 will be available on the 

18. The SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities 

market. Members holding Shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN details to their 

Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding Shares in 

physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. 

19. Additional Information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the listing Regulation, in respect of the Director seeking 

appointment/re-appointment at the AGM, forms part of the Notice. 

20. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the accompanying Statement are open for inspection by 

Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on all working days, up to the date of 

the Meeting. 

21. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the 

Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

22. In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements ) Regulation, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to 

vote on resolution proposed to be considered at the 53rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means 

and the business may be transacted through e-voting services. Necessary arrangements have been made by the 

Company with National Securities Depository (India) Limited (NSDL) to facilitate remote e-voting. E voting is 

optional and members shall have the option to vote either through remote e-voting or in person at the general 

meeting. 

The instructions for members for remote e-voting are as under:- 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with



Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 

their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

  

Type of shareholders Login Method 
  

Individual 

securities 

NSDL. 

Shareholders holding 

in demat mode with 

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

  

https://e 

the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’section , this will prompt you to 

enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you 

will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on 

“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e- 

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

rvices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 

  

click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/Secure Web/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
  

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer 

  

or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on 

the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A 

new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 

digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you 

will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e- Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will 

be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period. 

Shareholders/ Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 

voting experience. 

_ NSDL Mobile App is available on 

2 App Store 

  

Google Play 

  

           

    Individual 

securities 

CDSL 

Shareholders holding 

in demat mode with   3, 

. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their 

user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 

without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 

arehttp veb.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and        

click on New System Myeasi. 

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E 

Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
  

 



  

  

https:      /iweb.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat 

w.cdslindia.com home page.    Account Number and PAN No. from a link in w 

The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 

Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user 

will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is 

in progress. 

  

  
Individual Shareholders (holding | You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

securities in demat mode) login | Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 

through their depository participants | logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 

will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 

wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e- Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period   
  

Impertant note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 

through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

  

Login type Helpdesk details 
  

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 

Se eee oes 

1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 
demat mode with NSDL 

  

  
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 

by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com or contact at ee ees 

022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

  
demat mode with CDSL   
  

  

B) Login Method for e-Voting shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

  

  

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https:/Avww.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 

existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices afier using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you 

can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
  

  

  

 



a 
  

  

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or 

CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

  

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account 

with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client 

ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300*** 1 2**##**, 

  

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

[Q##keeREREREEEE then your user ID is 

  

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 

with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 

101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***         

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast 

your vote. 

  

b) Ifyou are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ 

which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 

password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL 

from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. 

The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of 

client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The -pdf file 

contains your “User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 

shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 
  

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 
9 a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL 

or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. : 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

¢) 

  

registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting 

system of NSDL. 
  

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 
  

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
    9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
  

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle 

 



  

  

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period Now 

you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

3. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 

which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

4. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
An You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

page. 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

  

I. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of 

the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 

shawmanoj2003@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. {t is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to 

Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 

the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 

user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free 

no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to (Name of NSDL Official) at evotine@ @nsdl.co.in Sie 

  

  

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories/ company for procuring 

user id and password and registration of ¢ mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

1, In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 

of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 

(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to (Company email id). 

2: In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 

beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (Company 

email id). If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to 

refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and eects ea eee 

password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update 

their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.



  

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS: 

ta
o 

The remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 (10.00 a.m. IST) and ends on 
Thursday, 25th September, 2025 (5.00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Friday, 19th September, 2025, may cast their 
vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The 
facility for voting during the AGM will also be made available. Members present in the AGM through VC/ 
OAVM and who have not cast their vote on the resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through the e-voting system during the AGM. 

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on Friday, 19th September, 2025. 

The Members who have cast their vote by remote-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/ participate in 
the AGM through VC/ OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of 
the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he/she is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then 
he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password for casting the vote. 

Mr. Manoj Prasad Shaw, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 5517), has been appointed 
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Scrutinizer shall . after conclusion of voting at the general meeting, first count the votes at the meeting, 
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting within 

stipulated time from the conclusion of the remote e-voting period , in the presence of at least two witnesses 
not in the employment of the Company and make not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the meeting, a 
consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the chairman of the 
meeting who will counter sign the same and declare the results of voting forthwith. 

Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Friday, 
19th September, 2025, may opt for remote e-voting or voting at the AGM. 

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website 
www.globalbol.com and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com, immediately on declaration of 
tesult by the chairman and communicate to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) where the shares of the 
Company are listed. 

By the Order of the Board 
BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

Date: 30.05.2025 < Taman 
Place: Kolkata 

Q; Vv Do 

RITU DAMANI 

COMPANY SECRETARY 

ACS: 35435



  

  

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS RECOMMENDED FOR APPOINTMENT / RE- 

APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT) REGULATIONS, 2015: 

  

Name of the Director Mr. BIPINBIHARI LAL 

(DIN: 01045250) 
  

Date of Birth (Age in years) 3ist October, 1944 (about 81 years) 
  

Date of First Appointment 30th October, 2003 
  

Expertise in specific functional area 

(Experience in years) 
Experience of 25 years in the Infrastructure Industry and experience in the 

Gases Industry of more than 20 Years 
  

Qualifications Graduate (B.TECH) 
  

Shareholding in the Company (either 

personally or on beneficial basis) 
NIL 

  

List of other Companies in which 
Directorship held 

1.Erohan Foundation (CIN: U85490MP2023NPL068838) (Designation: 

Director; Date of Appointment: 05.12.2023) 
  

Chairman/Member of the Committees 

  

  

of the Board across ail Public NIL 
Companies in which he is a Director 

Chairman/Member of the Committees NIL 
of the Board of the Company 

Disclosure of relationships between NIL 
Directors inter-se and other Key 
Managerial Personnel 
  

Terms and conditions of appointment / 

reappointment 
Reappointment pursuant to retirement by rotation 

  

Remuneration sought to be paid / last 
drawn 

Details as per Annexure-V of the Directors’ Report 

    Number of Board Meetings attended 
during the year   Disclosed in the Directors’ Report    



  

o3rd Annual Report 

    

  

For the year ended 3ist Mareh 2025 

BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED      
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 
  

NOTICE 

TO THE MEMBERS 

Notice is hereby given that the 53rd Annual General Meeting of BHAGAWAT] O2YGEN LIMITED will be held on Friday, 
26th Seplember, 2025 at 02:00 P.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at Plot No. 5, Sector- 25, Ballabhgarh, 

Haryana- 121004, to iransact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Staternents of the Company for the financial year anded March 31, 2025, 

together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon, 

Ta appoint a Director in place of Mr. Bipintihar Lal (DIN:01045250) who retires by rotation at this Annual General 

Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

By the Order of the Board 
BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

RITU DAMANI 
Date: 30.05.2025 COMPANY SECRETARY 

Place: Kolkata ACS: 35435 

Notes: 

1h 

10. 

11. 

Amember entitled to. attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting” ) is entitled toanpointa proxy to attend and 
yoie ona poll instead of him her and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument appoiniing the proxy 

should, however, be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the 
commencament of the meeting. A person can acta proxy on behalf of mambers nol exceeding fifly and holding in the 

aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting nights. A member holding more 
than tan percent of the fatal share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single persan as proxy and 

such person shall nol actas a proxy for any other person or shareholder, 

Altendance slip, oroxy form and the route map of the venue of the Meeting are annexed hereto, 

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representative(s} to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the 
Company @ certiied true copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with the specimen signature(s) of the 
representative(s) authorised under the said Board Resolution to.attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

Members! Proxies! Authorised Representatives are requested to bring fo the Meeting necessary details of their shareholding, 

attendance alip(s) and coples of Annual Report. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name 
appears as the first holderin the order of names as. per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 

Ag amended by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations. 2078 dated June 
08, 2018, members holding shares in physical form are mandatorily required to dematerialize their holding in order to 
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares. Members can contact Skyline Financial Sarvices Pvt, Ltd for further 
assistance. 

Members who hold shares in the dematerialized form ara requested to bring their DapositoryID Number and Client ID 
numbers to facilitate easier identification af atlendance at the AnnualGeneral Meeting. 

Messrs Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Lid has been appointed as Registrars and Share Transfer Agents for both physical 

and dematerialized shares ofthe Company. 

Members.are informed thal the sernp-of the Company ere-activaled both on COSL and NSDL and may be dematerialized 
underthe ISIN No. INEG26 707076, 

The Register of Mambers and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from, Saturday, 20th September, 2025 to 

Friday, 20th September, 2025 (both days inclusive) forthe purpose of Annual General Meeting. 

The instrument of transter completed In all respect together with requisite enclosure, shauld be sentto the Company well in 
advance so as foreach the Company prior to closure of Register of Members 

Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in (heir address or bank mandates to their 
Depository Participants ("DPs") with whom they are mainiaining their damat accounts. Members holding shares in physical 
mode are requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the Company ! Company's Registrar and 

Transfer Agents, i.e, Skyline Financial Services Pyt. Ltd, 
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te. 

1d, 

1A. 

+5, 

1B, 

20, 

21 

#2 

Forany further information regarding accounts intimation may be given to the Company in writing at least 10 days in advance 

from the date of the aforesaid meeting so as lo enable the managementto keep the information ready. 

Members holding shares in physical fonm can now avail the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them, The 

prescribed form can be obtained! submitted io Registtar& Share Transfer Agents ofthe Company. 

In the light of the green initiative of the Government of India, those members who have not yel registered their email ids are 
requested to register (heir amail id's with their depository participants in case of shares held in dematenalised form and those 
members holding shares in physical form to register their email id's with the R & 7 agent for receiving all communicatian 
including Annual Repon, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the-Company electronically, We urge upan-you to register the email id 

on priority and help the Company to support the nation in the green initiative. 

Pursuant ta the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and 
unclaimed amounts lying with Companies Rules, 2072, tha Company has NIL amount unpaid and unclaimed with the 
Company 43 on 26th September, 2024 (date of last Annual General Meeting) and the Company has declared the same with 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs websiie. 

Pursuant to the relaxations provided vide General Circular No.O8/2024 dated 19.08.2024, issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, read with the General Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD-1/P/CIR2025/83 dated 05.08.2025, 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of india (SEBI), from Regulation 36(1b)of SEB! (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("LODR Regulations’) which requires sending hard copy of Annual Report 

containing salient features of all the documents orescribed in Section 1236 of the Companies Act, 201310 the shareholders 
who have not registered their email addresses, the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2024-25, 

inchuding the notce of the Sard Annual General Meeting (AGM) and instruction for e-voting along with proxy form and 
altandance slip are being sent by electronic mode to tha members whose emaill-id bs registered with the Company! 

Depository Participant uniess a member has requested for a physical copy of the document The notice of the AGM 
published by advertisement in terms of Regulation 47 of LODR Regulations, contains a link to the Annual Report, so as to 

anable shareholders to have access to the full Annual Report. 

Members may also note thai the notice of the Sard AGM and Annual Report 2024-25 will be available on the Company's 

website https: www. glabalbolcom! 

The SEB! has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market 
Mambers holding Shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN details to their Depository 

Participants with whom they are mainiaining their demat accounts. Members holding Shares in physical forn can submit their 
PAN details tothe Company's Registrar and Share Transtar Agents. 

Additional Information, pursuant ta Regulation 36 of the listing Regulation, in respect of the Director seeking appointmentire- 

appaintment at the AGM, fons partofthe Notice. 

Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the accompanying Statement are open for inspection by Mambers at the 
Ragisterad Office of the Company during business hours on all working days, up tothe date of the Meating, 

In. case of joint holters, the Member whose name appears 2s the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of 

Mambers of tha Company will be antitlad to vote at the AGM. 

In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2015 and 
Regulation 44 of Securities & Exchange Board of india (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements } Requiation, 2075, 

the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolution proposed to be considered at 
the 53rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-voting services. 

Necessary arrangements have bean made by the Company with National Securities Depositary (India) Limited (NSOL) to 
facilitate rarnote e-voting, E voting is optional and members shall have the option 16 vote either through remote eveting or in 
person al [he qaneral meating, 

The instructions for mambers for remote e-voting are as under 

How do! vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way fo vole electronically on WSO. e-Voting system consists of Two Steps" which are mentioned below: 

Aj Loin method fore-Voting for Individual shareholders holaing securities indemalmade 

In terms of SEB)! circular dated December 9, 2020 on &-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vole through their demat account maintained with Depositaries and 
Dapasitory Participants: Shareholders ara advised to update their mobile number and email (din their demat accounts in 

order to access e-Voting facility, 
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding secures in darmnat mode is given below: 
  

  

Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 1. Existing IDeS user can visit the e-Services website.of NSDL Vic. httpsc/eservices nsdloom 
holding securities in éither on a Personal Computer or on @ moblie. On the e-Services home page click on the 

demat mode with NSDL. “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” whith is available under "IDeAS section , this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User |Dand Password. After successful authentication, you 
will be able to see e-Voting services under Value-added services. Click on “Access to e- 
Voting" under &-Voting services and you will be able fo s@e e-Voting page, Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider Le. NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-Voling website 

of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote ¢-Voting period 
2. lf you are nol registered for IDaAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

biipseserices.nsdloom, Select "Register Online fer IDeAS Portal" or click at 
hips eservices nsdloom/ Secure WeblideasDiracthag isp 

3. Visit the o-Valing website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

bttps ./ianwweveting nedl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Onoe the 
home page of a-Voting system Is launched, click on the tcon “Login” which |s available under 

‘Shareholder Member’ sector, Anew screen will open, ‘You will have-lo enter your User ID 
(Le, your sixteen digit demat account number hod with NSDL), PasswordiOTP and a 

Verification Gode as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 

radiracied fo NSDL Depositary sile wharein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name ore-Veting service provider |e. NSDLand you will be redirected te. e-Voting website 
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting parod. 

4, Sharaholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by 
scanning the OR code mantioned below for seamless voting expenence 

NSDL Mobile App is available on 

@ App st Store | Google Play 

  

  

  

  

  
  

individual Sharaholdars 1. Existing users who have opted for Eas: / Easiest, they can login through their user id-and 

holding cacurities In damat password. Option will ba meade available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
mode with COSL authentication, The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 

afehttps:/iweb.cdslindia.caniimyaasihome/login or wyew.cdsiindia.com and click on New 

System Myeasi, 

2. Affer-successful login of East Easiest the user will be also able in see the E Voting Menu. The 
Menu will have links ofe-Veting service provideri.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast yourvote 

3.1f the user is pot registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register ls available at 
httns: web odslindia.com/myeasiRaqgistration/EasiReqistration 

4, Alternatively, the user can directly aesess -e-Voling page by providing demat Aceount 
Number and FAN No. trom a@ link in wenocdslindia.com home page. The system will 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Monde & Email as recorded in the demat 

Account. Afler successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP 
i.e. WSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 
  

Individual Shareholders You tan also login using the login credentiais of your demat account through your Depositary 

(holding securities in Participant registered with NSDLICDSL for e-Voting facility, upon logging in. you will be able 
demat mode) login io Se8 e-Voling optian. Click on @-Voting option, you Will be redirected ts NSO0LACDSL 
through their dapesitery Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click 
participants on company name or e-Voting service provider Le, NSDL and you will be redirected to a-     Voting website of NSDL for casting your vata during the remote e-Voting period 
  

Important note: Mambers who are unable to relriave User (D/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available at abovementionad website. 
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSOL and COSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
  

  

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contac! NSDL helpdesk by 
securities in damat mode with NSDL sending a request at eyotingdinsdl.co.in or call attall free ne. 1800 1020 990 and 

1800 22 444 30 
  

Individual Shareholders holding | Mambers facing any tachnical issue in login can contact COSL helpdesk by 
securities indamat mode with COSL sending @ request at helpdesk.evoling@icdstindia.com or contact al O22- 

230587 38 or 022-23058542-45   
  

  

B) Login Methed for e-Voting shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

Log-in to NSDL e-Voti beite? 

  

1. Visit the e-Veling website of NEDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: hitps./wwawevoting nsdl com! alther 

ona Personal Computer or ona mobile, 

#.Once. the home page of e-Voting system is igunched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder Member’ section, 

a. Anew screen will open, You will have to anter your UserID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

Screen. 

Aittematively, you are registered for NSDL esernices Le. IDEAS, you can log-in af hifps.“eservices. rsdlicorry’ wilt your 

existing IGEAS jogin, Once you log-in fo WSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, cliek one-Voling-and you can 

proceed fo Sfep 2 ie, Cast your vols electronically, 

4. Your User ID details are given below 
  

  

Manner of holding shares i.e, Your User ID is: 
Demat (NSDL or COSL) or Physical 
  

a) For Mambers who hold shares in | & Character OP ID followed by & Digit ClantiD 
demataccount withNSDL. For example if your DP ID is INDO" and Chant ID ls 42°°°""* then your user ID is 

INSoO**12°"""", 
  

b} For Mambers who hald shares in | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

demat account with CDSL. For example ff your Beneficiary ID is a2"*"ttte*""t"** then your user ID is 
4 ae he 

  

©) For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company 
Physical Form. For example if folia number is 001°" and EVEN is 107456 then user ID is 

101456001*""       
  

  

5. Password details for sharebolders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

ajif you are already registered for a-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote, 
bilf you are using NSDL &Voting system for the first time, you will need to retneve the ‘initial password 

which was communicated ta yoy. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 
password and the system will force you to change your password. 

) Howto retriave your ‘initial password’? 

(i) Wyour email 1D is ragisterad in your damat account or with the company, your ‘initial passwerd’ is communicated ta 
you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSOL from your mailbox, Open the email and open the 
attachment (a. a pdf file. Open the opal file. The password to open the pdf file is your 6 digit chent 1D for NSOL 
accdunt, fast 8 digits of chent IO for COSL account or fotio number for shares held in physical form. The .pelf file 
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(il) [your email (D is hot registered, please follow slaps mentioned below im process for those shareholders whose 

emaillids are notregisteread.   
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6. Ifyou are unable to retrieve or have not recenved the * Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?"(I{ youl are holding shares in your demat account with NSOL or 
COSL) option available on www evating. wsal.com, 

b) Physical User Reset Password?" (if you ara holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
wewiwevoting. asdloam, 

c)lf you are -still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@insdi.coin mentioning your demat account numberfolla number. your PAN, your name and your 

registered address etc. 

dq) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) besed login for casting the voles on the &-Voting system 

of NSDL 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box 

8, Now, you will have to click an “Login” button, 

g. After you idick on the “L *Login" button, Home p page of e- Voting will apen. 
aiaaininiabanisiigi   

  

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system, 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login al Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN in which you are holding shares 

and whose voling cycle 

2. Sealacl “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote a-Voling pariad Now you are 

ready for 2-Violing as the Voting page opens. 

3. Gast your vote by selecting appropriate options |e. assent or dissent, venfyimodify tha number of shares for 
which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit" and alse “Confinm’ when prompted. 

4. Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

§. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page, 

6, Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote, 
General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Insthutianal shareholders (ia. othar than individuals. HUF, NRI ete.) are requirad to sand scanned copy (PDFUPS 

Format) of the relevant Board Resolution! Authority letter etc. with atiested specimen signature of the duly authorized 

signatory(ties) who are authonzed to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to shawmanojZ003.@gmail.com with a copy marked 

toevotinginsdloo.in. 

2. itis strongly recommended notto share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential, Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts toa key in the comect password, 

iInsuch an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Detais/Password?” or “Physical liser Reset Password?” 

option available on wyw.evolting.nsdl,com lo resel the password, 

3. Incase of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual 
for Shareholders available at the download section of waw.evoting nedl.com or call on toll free mos 1800 1920 990 ane 
18) 22 44 30 or senda request to (Name of NSDL Official) at evatingg@insdl coin 

  

Process forthose shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories! company for procuring userid 

and passwerd and registration ofa mallids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No. Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (frantand back), PAN (seifattested scanned copy of PAN cardi, AADHAR (Seif attested sranned.copy of Aadhar 
Card}by email to (Company email it) 

2. Incase shares are held in damal mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DRID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 1D), Name; 
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self atlested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (sell 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Gard) to (Company email id), Ifyou are an Individual sharsholdars holding securities in 
demal mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained al step 7 (A) ie. Login method for e-Voting for 
individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may sand a request to avolingiinsdl.oo.in for procuring user id and password for e- 

voting by providing above mentioned documents, 

4 In terns of SEBI circular dated December §. 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding secunties in demat mode are allawed to vote through thea demat account maintained with 

Depasitones and Depository Panicipants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID carectly 

in their demat account in order te access &-Voting facility 
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OTHER INSTRUCTIONS: 

1. Tha remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 (10.00 a.m. (57) and ends on Thursday, 25th 
September, 2025 (5,00 p.m. 157), During this period, Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, a on Fnday, 19th September, 2025, may cast their yote electronically. The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The facility for voting during the AGM will also be made available, Members 
presentin the AGM through VG) GAVM and who have not castihelr voie on the resolutions through remoie e-voting and are 
otherwise not bared from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through the e-voting system during the 4GM 

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to-their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as.on 

Friday, 19th September, 2025, 
. The Members who have cast ther vote by remote-voting prior ta the AGM may also attend! paricipate in the AGM through 

VO) GAVM but shall not be antitied to cast their vote again 
Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and 
holding shares as of the cutoff date, may obtain the login ID and passward by sending 4 request at evoling@nsal.co.in. 
However, |[hefshe is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting lhen he’she can use his/her existing User ID and 

password for casting the vote. 

Mr. Manoj Prasad Shaw, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 5517), has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Scrujinizer shall , after conchusion of voting at the general meeting, first count the votes at the meeting, thereafter 
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting within stipulated lime fram the conclusion of the remote e-voting periad , in 
the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of ihe Company and make not later than 48 hours of 

conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizers Report of the total votes cast in favour or against. iPany, to the 
chairman of the meeting whowill counter sign the same and declare the results of voting forthwith. 

. Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in demateralized form, as on Friday, 19th Seplamber, 
27025, may optfor remote e-voting or voting atthe AGM. 

The resull declared alang wilh the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website ww. globalbol comand 

on the website of NSDL weew.evoting.nsdi.com, immediately on declaration of result by the chainnan and communicate ta 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) where the shares. of the Gampany are listed. 

By the Order of the Board 
BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

RIT DAMANI 
Date: 30.05.2025 COMPANY SECRETARY 
Place: Kolkata ACS: 35455 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS RECOMMENDED FOR APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED 
UNDER REGULATION 36(3) OF SEB! (LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT} REGULATIONS, 2015 ; 
  

Name of the Director Mir. BIFINBIHARI LAL 
(DIN: 071045250) 

  

Date of Birth (Age In years) Sisi October, 1944 (about 41 years) 
  

Date of First Appointment 30th October, 2003 
  

Expertise in specific functional area 
(Experience in years) 

Expenence of 25 years in the Infrastructure Industry and 

@xperience in the Gases Industry of more than 20 Years 
  

Qualifications Graduate (B.TECH) 
  

Shareholding in the Company 
{either personally or on beneficial basis) 

NIL 

  

List of other Companies in which Directorship held 1.Erahan Foundation (CIN: USS400MP20235NPLO6aea8) 
(Designation: Director, Date of Appoainttneant: 05.42.2023) 

  

  

  

ChairmaniMember of the Committees of the Board NIL 
across all Public Companies in which he is a Director 

ChairmaniMember of the Committees of NIL 
the Board of the Company 

Disclosure of relationships between Directors NIL 
inter-se and other Key Managerial Personnel 
  

Terms and conditions of appointment / reappointment Reappointment pursuant lo retirement by rotation 
  

Remuneration sought to be paid / last drawn Details as per Annexure-V of the Directors’ Report 
    Number of Board Meetings attended during the year     Disclosed in the Directors’ Report 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Dear Shareholders, 
The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 53rd Annual Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025 

1, SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS: (Rs.in '000) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Total income 16764 Toad 

Finance cost 1223 4028 

Depreciation & amortization 430 R404 

PBT (5051) 5544 

Tax expense (582) 1452 

PAT (4509) 4112 

Surplus- opening balance 20256 16144 

Surplus- closing balance 1ST47? 20256 
  

2. THE STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS: 

During the year, the total income of the Company amounted to Rs. 167 lakhs while, inthe previous year it was Rs. 710 jakhs. The 

Company during the year incurred a loss of Rs. 45 lakhs. We are hoping of better results In the future. 

3. DIVIDEND: 

The Board did not declare any dividend owing to boss suffered by the Company and considered it prudent to conserve the 
resources for the Company's growth and expansion and accerdingly does not recommend payment of any dividend on the equity 
shares for the financial year under review 

4, TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

The Directors da not propose to transfer any amauntto the general rasanves, during the year. 

§, STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The Company has in place adequate intemal financial controls with reference to financial statemenis. During the year, such 
controls were tested and no reportabie or material weakness in the design or operaiion was observed, 

6. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS: 

industry Structure and Development: 

Your industry is primarily a “gas manufacturing industry" supplying oxygen gas on exclusive supply scheme basis. However, the 
Company is aiso engaged in wind power and specialty gases and cylinders from which the Company has been making tumover, 

Opportunities & Threats, Trends & Strategies; 
The fundamental of the gas industry appears to be battler and is growing fast because ofthe improvement in tha steal sector. As our 
sales are tied upsome strategies adopted by your Company are: (a) reducing cast of capital (b) transactional cost of production {c) 
reducing pollution lavels (d) creation of good infrastructure ete. Your Company has taken adequate steps to reduce the cost of 
production by continuously evaluating process improvements.and best operational practices. Although the industrial gas industry 
is categonzed under white category, your Company ls commitied to adhere to all applicable environment regulations and improve 

upon the environmental perfonnance on e-continued basis. 

Outlook: 

The encouraging growth on both production and sales in this year is likely to be sustained in the futura years also, Quilook for the 
current year remains strong. The Company's operations are subject to riske which can impact business performance essentially 

wilh fagard lo prices of basic materials like molecular sieves, power. The management is seized of assessing such risks and takes 

measures to addrass the same. 

i” {Control 

The Company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with its size and nature of business. The abjective of 

these procedures i to ensure efficient use and protection of the campany resources, aocuracy in financial reporting and due 

compliance of statutes and company policies & procedures. Checks and balances extsl in the system lo ensure thal all 
transactions are adequately authorized and reported carractly, 
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Risks & Concerns: 

The Company's operations are subject to risks which can impact business performance essentially wilh ragard to demand fram 
customers and prices of basic matedals. The management assesses such risks and takes measures to address the same. The 
Company is committed io adhere to all applicable environment regulations and Improve upon the environmental performance ona 
continued basis. 

Human Resources Development: 

The Company appreciates that human assets constitute the driving force behind the Company's growth plans. The Company has, 
during the year, continued to have good industrial relations with its amplayees. Your Company would like to record the whole- 

hearted support and dedication received from the employees at all levels 

Cautionary Statement: 

Siatement in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's position and expectation may be 

“forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws & regulations. Actual results could differ materially 

from those expressed or implied, Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's operation include, among 

others, economic conditions affecting demand! supply, changes in Government regulations, tax laws. and other statutes and 

incacental factors. 

7, SHARE CAPITAL, LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE AND DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES: 

The Company ts listed with the BSE Ltd and confirms that it has paid the annual listing fees forthe year 2024-2025 to the BSE Ltd. 

During the year under review, there Was no change in share capital of he Company, 

60.12%. of the Company's paid up Equity Shares Capital is in dematenalization form as on 31st March, 2025 and balance 49.67 90 1 

in physical form. The Company's Registrar's and Share Transfer Agents are M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt Lid having their 

office at D-1594, 1st Floor, Okhia Industrial Area Phased, New Delhi- 110020, 

&. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD: 

Curing the financial year 2023-24, 4 (four) meetings of tha Board of Directors of the Campany were held on 30th May, 2024, 08th 

August 2024, 14th November, 2024 and 12th February, 2025. 

§. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

The Company appomted Mr. Ashok Purohit (DIN: 07521029) as 3 non- executive independent director of the Company at the 
previous Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 26th September, 2024 fora period of five years 

The second term of Mr. Bipinbihari Lal (DIN: 01045250) as.an independent director of the Company expired on 31.03.2024 and he 

was not eligible to be reappoinied as an independent director of the Company as per section 149/11) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board of Directors in recommendation of its Nomination and Remuneration Committee has at its meeting held on 30th May. 
2024, decided that Mr. Bipindthari Lalshall continue as the non-executive and non-independent director of the Company, Keeping 
in mind the vast experience and knowledge that be holds which can be beneficial for ihe Company. 

Further, in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Bipinbihan Lal 
(DIN-01045250), director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered 
himseif for re-appointment, 

10. DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 149 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

The Independent Directors of the Company have given the Declaration of Independence tothe Company stating that they meetthe 
criteria of Independence as mentioned under Section 149/56) of the Companies Ael, 2014. 

11. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Inaccordance with the provisions of Section 134{5) of the Companies Act 2013, the directors confirm that: 

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended Stst March, 2025, the applicable accounting 
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, iTany; 

b. The Directors had selected such accounting polities and applied tham consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 
and ofthe lass ofthe Company for period fronv ist April, 2024 to Stst March, 2025: 

e The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care forthe maintenance of adequate accounting records in accortance wilh 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding tha assets of tha Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
ifrequiaritias: 

d. The Directors had prepared the annual acoounts for the financial yeaarended Sist March, 2025 on a going concem basis: 

eB The Director had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such intemal financial controts 
are adequate and were operating effectively; 
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i The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with lhe provisions of all applicable laws and thal such 
Systems were atequale and operating effectively. 

42. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Aucit Committee of the Board are comprised of Mr, Himanshu Sharma, Mr. Sanjay Kumar Rei and Mr. Ashok Purohit, Mr 
Himanshu Sharma is the Executive Director! Managing Director and Mr. Ashok Purohit and Mr. Sanjay Kumar Rai are the 
Independent Directors, All the reoommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 
During the Financial Year 2024-25, 4 (four) meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors were held on 30th May, 2024, 

bth August, 2024) 14th November, 2024 and 12th February, 2025. 

13. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

The Nemination and Remuneration Committee of the Board are comprised of Mrs. Jaya Sharma, Mr. Sanjay Kunvar Rai and Mr. 

Ashok Purohit. 

Mrs. Jaya Shanna is a non-executive Director and Mr. Ashok Purohit and Mr. Sanjay Kumar Ral are tha Independent Directors. 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, 1 (One) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors was 

held on 30th May, 2024. 

14. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Board are comprised of Mrs. Jaya Shanna, Mr. Sanjay Kumar Ral and Mr, Ashok 

Purohit, 

Mrs, Jaya Sharma is 2 non-executive Director and Mr, Ashok Purohit and Mr, Sanjay Kumar Rai are the Independent Directors 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, 1 (One) meeting of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors were held 
on 30th May, 2024. 

15. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

In pursuant io Section 177(8) of the Aci, 2073. and Rules made thereunder, the Company has in place a policy on vigil mechanism 

lor enabling the directors and employees of the Company to report their genuine concems, |Pany and also provides for adequate 

safequands against victimization of persons using the mechanism 

16. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY: 

The Company has putin place a Nomination and Remuneration Policy framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Commitee of 
the Board, pursuant to Section 178(3)} and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The policy determines the 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the Directors. The policy also deals with the remuneration for the directors, 
key managerial personnel and employees af the Campany, The salientfeatures of the policy.are: 

(a) itensures that the fevel and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of 
the quality required to run the company successtully; 

(b) itensures that relationship of remuneration to performance ls clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 

ic) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive 
pay reflecting shortand long-term performance objectives aporopriate to the working of the company and lis goals. 

There has been no change in the policy during the year. The detailed Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Gampany is 
disclosed in the website of the Gompany www globalbal.cem. 

17. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT: 

At the Fiftieth AGM held on 20th September 2022 the Members approved appolniment of Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 302 137E) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office fora period of five years fram 
the conciusian of that AGM til the conclusion of the Annual Genéral Meeting of your Company to be held in year 2027 in 

recommendation of the Audit committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. 

The Notes on Financial Statement referred to in the Auditor's Report are salf-axpianatory and do notcall for any further comments. 

The Auditors’ Reportdoas notcontairany qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer, Further, the Statutory Auditors 

have not reported any incident of fraud including frauds under section 143/12) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under 

review to the Audit Committee of your Company, 

18. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

The Board of Directors have appointed Mis Rekha Goanka & Associates (Practicing Company Secratanes) to conduct Secretarial 

Audit for the financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial yaar ended March 31, 2025 is annexed herewith 

marked as “Annexure I’ to this Report, The qualifications made by lhe Secretarial Auditor have been noted by the Board and it 

assures of better compliance in the future. 

19. MATERIAL CHANGES OCCURRED AFTER END OF FINANCIAL YEAR: 

No maternal changes took place after the end of the Financial year, 
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20. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

Tha information raquired undersection 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, is provided in “Annexure fl’ to this Report. 

21, CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 

The Company has net developed or implemented any Gorporata Social Responsibility initiatives as the said provisions are not 
applicable to the Company as per section 135 of the CompaniesAct, 2013. 

22. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

With referance to the provisions of Section 134(3in) of the Companies Act, 2019, the Board of Directors has developed a isk 
management plan of the Company and had identified the key risk areas where the Company's business is vulnerable, The key risk 
areas are further categorized in the following:- 

(a) Strategic Risks, 

ib) Operational Risks and 

ic) Financial and Compliance related Risks. 

  

All he-strategic, operational and financial risks are duly analyzed and taken care of, 

The Directors are aware of the requirement of the risk mitigation plan and are continuously making the necessary efforts to redress 
the impact of the adversities. 

2d. STATEMENT ON FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS 
DIRECTORS, AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’), the Board carried oul the performance evaluation of iis own and 
that of its Individual Directors throuah the Nemination and Remuneration Committee of the Board (the Cemrmittea’), duly 
constituted by the Board forthe above purpose, in terms of the Act. 

During the year under review, the Committee mada the perfonnance evaluation as above, based on the following criterions. in line 
with the Nomination and Remuneration Poticy of ha Gomnany: 

- Attendance and participation in the meetings: 

- Preparedness forthe meetings; 

- Understanding ofthe Company and the external environment inwhichil operates and 

- Constructive contribution to issues and active participation at meetings 

The Committee found the Directors to be fulfilling the above enterions, 

The Board also conducted the perfomance evaluation of its vanous Committees, based on references made to the Gommiltees. 
interms of the Actand found the performance tobe satisfactory. 

24. CONTRACT AND ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

The Audit Committee reviews all the Related Party Transactions, to ansure thal the same are in line with the provisions of law and 
policy, The commitles approves the Relaled Party Transactions and all the contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the 
Company during the financial year wilh related parties were in the ordinary course af business and on anarm’s lanath basis. Buring 
the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related partias which could be considered 
material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party ransactions. 

The details of the related party transactions are given in the Notes to the financial statements 

25. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

The Annual Returns) are avaiable at the website of the Company al htto./globalbol_com/oxygen/annual-reparts. 

26. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given 
inthe notes to the Financial Stetemanis, 

27. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

The disclosure as required under Rule 4(1) of Companies (Appainiment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
enclosed with this report as ‘Annexure Ill’, The Company has not paid any remuneration attracting the provisions of Rule 5(2} of 
the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managenal Persemnel) Rules, 2074, Hence, no information is required to be 
appended to this reportin this regard. 

28. CORPORATE WEBSITE: 

Tha Company mainiains a website www. globalbot.com where detailed information of the Company and its business is provider. 
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29. DISCLOSURES UNDER RULE 8(5) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014: 

a) Financial summary or highlights: As detailed underthe heading ‘Summary of Financial Results’ 

b) Change in the nature of business, ifany: None 

c) Details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel, who were appointed or resigned during the year: As detailed under 
the heading "Directors and Key Managerial Personnel’ 

d) A statement regarding opinion of the Board with regard te Integrity, expertise and experience (including the 
proficiency) of the independent directors appointed during the year: Mr. Ashok Purohit, was appointed as an independent 
director of the Company at the previous Annual General Meeting, and has been the past Vice-Chairman, followed by the Chainian 
of the Easter India Regional Council of the ICSI, and has.a vast experience in areas of secretarial and legal advisory. Mr. Purohitis 

registered with the Independent Directors’ Databank and has duly qualified the online proficiency sel-assessment test required 

under section 150(1) ofthe Companies Act, 20193, Mr. Sanjay Kumar Rai, another independent director of the Company has a vast 

experience of more than 25 years Secretarial, Finance, Lagaland Statutory Compliance across Real Estale, Iman & Steel, Hospital 
& Media Companies. Mr, Rai is also registered wilh the Independent Directors' Databank and has duly qualified the online 
proficiency self-assessment tast required under section 150(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

  

6) Names of Companies which have become or ceased to be Subsidiaries, Joint Venture Companies or Associate 
Companies during the year- NIL 

f} Detalls relating to deposits: There were no daposits covered under Chapter VY of the Aci, accepted, unpaid of unclaimed as at 

the end of the year, There is no default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon, There has not been any deposit, 
which is notin compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 20173. 

g) Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by the regulators! Courts! Tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and your Company's operations in future: NIL 

h) Adequacy of Internal Financial Control The Company has an adequate system of internal control procedure as 
commensurate with the size and nature of business, which ensures that all assets are safeguarded and protected against boss and 
ali transactions are recorded and reported comectly. The Internal contrai system of the Company is monitored and evaluated by 
internal auditars and their audit reports are periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. The 
observations and comments of the Audit Committee are placed before the Board tor reference, 

The scope af internal audit includes audit.of purchase facilities, sales promotion expenditure and incentive schema, deblors and 
creditors policy, inventory policy, VAT, CENVAT and GST matters and others, which are also considered by the Statutory Auditors 

while conducting audit of the annual financial statements, 

i) maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013: 

Maintenante of costrecords as species by the Central Goverment under section 148(1) of the Companies Act. 2073, is mot 

required by the Company and accordingly such accounts and records are nol maintained, 

j) constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 20793: The Company hes complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of the Infernal 

Complaints Committee under the Sexusl Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
Durning the year, neither any complaints of sexual harassment were received by it, nor were there any complaints relating thereto 
which required any disposal thenaal 

k) the details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 

2016) during the year along with their status a5 atthe end of the financial year: NIL 

Li the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the valuation 

done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof: NIL 

30. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

The Board would like to express its sincere appreciation for the valuable support and co-operation received fram varnious Cantral 
and State Government Authorities, Stock Exchanges, Financial Institutions and Banks during ihe year. They alsa gratefully 
acknowledge the support extended by the customers and shareholders and contribution made by lhe employees atall level, 

Fer and on behalf of tha Board of Directors 

SK SHARMA 

Date: 30.05.2025 Chairman 

Place: Kolkata (DIN: 00047750) 
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ANNEXKURE | 
FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3487 MARGH, 2025 

{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2074] 

To, 
The Members 
Bhagawati Oxygen Limited 
Sector 26, Plot No. &, 
Ballabhgerh, Haryana- 121004 

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate 
practices by BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED(CIN: LF4S99HR1972PLC006203), (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my venfication of the Company's books, papers, minule books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and alsa the information provided by the Company, ile officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of the secretarial audit, | heraby report thal in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 

year ended 37° March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- 
Processes and compliance mechanism in plate to the exient, inthe manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter; 

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
financial year ended 31" March, 2025 according to the provisions of 

{) Tha Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under. 

(i) Tha Securities Contrants (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act. 1896 andthe Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

{iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1989 and the rules and regulations made there under to the exteni of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed underthe Secunties and Exchange Board of india Act, 1992 (SEBI Acti, 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations. 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Reguiatians, 2015; 

io} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disciosure Requirements) Regulations, 2078; 

id) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Non-Converible Securities | Requiations, 2021; 

if The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents} Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Actand dealing with client 

(9g) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Boarddof India (Buyback of Securities) Requiations, 2018- 

(vi) [have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systams and mechanism formed by the Company 
for compliances under other applicable Acis, Laws and Regulations to the Company. The list of major head/groups of Acts, 
Laws and Regulations as applicable to tha Company are as fallows:- 

| Gas Cylinders Rule2zona 

il, Statio and Mobile Pressure Vessels(unfired) Rules, 1981 

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the follawing- 

{i} The-Company has complied with the applicable Clauses of 35-1 (Secretanal Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors 
and 55-2 {Secretarial Standard on General Meetings} issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(i) The Company has compled with Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 entered into by the Company with the stock exchanges, subject to observation made hereunder: - 

® The Company has not-compilied with the Regulation 37/2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2075, which mandates the Listed Entities to ensure that 
100% of shareholding of promoter(s) and promoter group /s in dematerialized form and the same is maintained an 
4acontinuous basis in the manneras specified by Securities and Exchange Board of india (SEBN. 

  

17



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

During the pernod under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act. Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc, mentioned above, 

[further report that 

@) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with executive, non-executive and independent directors, 

b) Adequate notice is given to all dinactors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
leas! sevendays in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 

ilams before the meeting and for meaaningtul participation atthe meeting, 

co) Majority deciséon is arned through while the dissenting members! Views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes, 

dg) The Compliances of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, have not been reviewed in this Audit since the 

same have been subject to review by the statutory financial auditor and other designated professionals 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations ofthe 

Company to moniter and ensure compliance with applicable laws, mules, regulations and guidelines 

further report that during the audit period the Company has accorded the consent of members to the Board of Directors for the 

following specific events/actions having a major bearing on the Company's affairs: - 

® Dunng the year, Ihe Company has appointed Mr. AshokPuroanhit,.as a Non-Executive Independent Director, who has 

submitted a declaration that he meeis the cnterna for independence as provided in Section 1495/6) of the Companies Acct, 

2013 and who is eligible for appomiment, and whose office shall not be iiable to retire by rotation, to hold office for 5 (Five! 

consecullye years, wilh Immediate effect, fora term up to 30"May 2029, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 
152 and any otner applicable provisions, if any_of the Companies Act 2019, read together with ihe provisions of the Rules 
framed there under and read with Schedule ly to the Actas amended fram time to time andfurther read with all circulars, 
notifications, provisions of the SEBI{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2075 and other 
orovisions of law, as applicable for the time being. 

For REKHA GOENKA & ASSOCIATES 
(Practicing Company Secretaries} 

(REKHA GOENKA) 

(Company Secretary) 
Date: 30.05 2025 FCS: 72590; CP: 11457 

Place: Kolkata PR No. 1705/2022 
UDIN: FOI 2590G000508470 

The reportis to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A, and fonmnsan integral part of this: report. 

Th, 
Annexure = A, 

The Members 
Mis BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 
CIN: L74899HR1972PLC006203 
Sector 25, Plot. 5, 
Ballabhgarh, Haryana- 121004 

My raporlof even dale is to be read along with this letter, 

Management's Responsibility: 

1. 

2 

Maintenance of Secretarial records is tha responsibility of the management of the Campany. My responsibility is loexpress an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

| have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the comeciness of 

the contenis of the Secretarial records. The venfication was done on test basis to ensure thal correct facts are reflected in 

Secretarial records, | believe thatthe process and practices, lfollowed provide a reasonable basis formy opinion 

| have not verified the cormectness and appropriateness offinancial records and Books of Accounts of the Company 

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events, eto, 

The compliance of the prowsions of Corporate and alher applicable laws, rules, requiations, standards is the responsihility of 
management, My examination was limiled to the verification of procedure on test basis, 
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6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For REKHA GOENKA & ASSOCIATES 
(Practicing Company Secretaries) 

(REKHA GOENKA) 

Fes, 12580, OP. 11367 Date: 30.05 2025 ' oP, 

Place: Koikata PR No. 1705/2022 
UDIN FOI590G000508470 

ANNERURE- ll 

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Eamings and Outgo required to be 

disclosed under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

(A) Conservation of Energy: 

(a) Energy conservation steps taken: 

+Energy conservation continues to recelve priority attention atall levels. 

+Factones have implemented measures to maintain power factor above 0.98 to reduce reactive power lings, 

+Gradual replacement of high energy dluminabon by lower power consuming lumination in working area_ 

+Replatement of opaque sheets with iranslucent corugaled shaeis to allow more natural light. 

+Continuous effort te reuse/recyele ground water. 

(b) Additional investment proposals, ifany, being implemented for reduction of consumption of emergy: NIL 

(c}) Impact of measures of (a) & (b) for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impaction cost of production of goods: 

+Reduction in speciic power usage per unit of pulput io be realized in caming years, 

(dj) Energy conservation Inrespect of specified industries: NA 

(B) Technology Absorption 

Research & Development (RED) 

1. Efforts and areas in which R&D carried owt: 

+The Company is successtully doing improvement of product charactenstics. 

+Developing processes toimprove product cost structure. 

2. Bonefits derived as a result of the above efforts: 

+improved manufacturing efficiency with reduced losses & costs, 

+improved quality and production meeting customer requirenvent, 

3. Future Plan of Action: 

+incredsed focus on customized product deliverables aligning in ling with strategic business partners 

+improved process operation with reduced process wastage, debottlanecking of processes, equipmentand quality issues, 

4. Expenditure on RED: charged under primary heads of accounts. 

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: (Amountin Thousands.) 

FY 2024-25 PY 2023-24 
Foreign exchange sutgo = = 

Foreignexchange eaming - 91363 

Far sndoon behalf of the Board ef Owectors 
5K SHARMA 

Date: 30.05, 2025 Chairman 
Place: Kolkata (DIN: 00044150) 
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ANNEXURE- Ill 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATON AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 
RULES, 2074. 

i) The percentage increase in remuneration of aach Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial 
year 2024-25 anc-ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration af the employees of the Company for the 
financial year 2024-25 are as under; 

  

  

  

  

  

Sl, Name of Directors Remuneration of Directay’ KMP | 4) increase in Remuneration In pee lations cil 

Wo. KMP and Designatian for Financial Year 2024-26 (Rs.)| the Financial Year 2024-25 | ramuneralion of empioyaes 
1 | Mr Himanshu Shanna, MO 35 ,00,000.00 NIL 21.63 

2 | MrSuresh Kumar Sharma, WD 840,000.00 MIL 5.05 
2 | Mr. Suikanta Bhettachajesa, CFO 3.57.956.00 MIL 2.15 

4 | Ms. Ritu Damani, cS 1.A.000.00 NIL 0.90             
  

Note: No-other Director other than the Managing Director and Whole Tima Director received any remuneration other than sitting 

fees during the financial year 2024-25. 

ij In ithe financial year, there was anincrease of 13.74% in the median remuneration of employees. 

iii) There were 15 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as.on March 31, 2025, 

iv) The Average percentage decrease mate in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnal in the last financial 

yearwas 12.02% whereas percentage change in the managerial remuneration forthe said financial yearwas Nil, 

vi [tas hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2025 is as per the 

Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

5K SHARMA 
Place: Kolkata 

Date: 30/06/2025 Chairman 

(DIN: 00041150) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT   

Ta 
The Members of 
Bhagaowatl Oxygen Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have auditad the accompanying financial statements of Bhagawall Oxygen Limited (‘the Company"), which comprise the 
Balance Sheel as af March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprahansive Income), Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Statement of Gash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the financial stataments, including a 
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information tor the yearended on thal date (hereinatter refered 
toa “the financial statements’), 

In. our opinion and to. the best of our information and according to the explanatons given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give tha Information required by tha Companias Act, 2013 (‘tha Act") in ihe manner so raquired and gives a true and falr view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2025, and it’s financial performance, changes in equity and its cash flows forthe year ended on thatdate. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (S45) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act.2073. Gur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
financial statements sacton of our report. We are indapendent of tha Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together wilh the ethical requirements that are relevant lo our audil of the financial 
slatements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for ouropinion, 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the. currant period. Thase matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in farming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have detenminad that there are 

no key audit matters to be communicated in our report 

Information Other than the Financial Statements. and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other informatian, The other informationcomprises the information 
included in the Report of the Board of Directors, Extract of Annual Returns, Directors Responsibility Statement and other annexure 
to Directors Report including Shareholders Information, but does not mclude the financial statements and our auditor's report 
there on, Gurapinion on the financial statements dows pot cover ihe other information and we do nol express any form of 
assurance concluston thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial shalemenis, our responsibility is to read the other information and in doing so, consider 
whether the other information Is matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowlecae obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based ion tha work we have performed, we conclude that there is-a matenal 
misstatement of this other information: we are required lo reaport hat iach. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management Responsibility forthe Financial Statements 

TheCompany's Board of Directors is responsible forthe matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respectto Ihe preparation of 
these financial statements that give a irue and fair view of he financial position and cash flaws of tha Company in ascordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting reconds in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds: and other imeqularites; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policias; making judgments and estimates thal are reasonable and prudent and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that wers operating effactivaly for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevent to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 6 
tre and fairview and are free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud orercr. 

In prepanng the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concen, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the Board of Directors either intends to llquidate the Company orlo cease operations, or has no realistic allemative bul lo to so. 

The Board of Directors are alsa responsible for everseealng the Company's financial raparting process, 

Auditor's Responsibility forthe Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole are free fram material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, butis nota guarantees that an audit conducted in accomance with Standards on Auditing (BAs) will always 
detect a maternal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise fram fraud or error and are considered maternal if, 
individually or in the aggregate, lhay could raasonanly be expected to influanoe the economic decisions of users takenon the basis 
of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional pudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 

the audit, We alse 

@ = = ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to thase risks..and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approoriate to provide a 
basis for curopinion, The risk of notdetecting amaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, 25 fraud may involye collusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of intemal contrat, 

® Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143/3)(i) of the ActL we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial stabemenis in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls; 

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disciosuresin thetinancial statements made by management 

@® Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on the auelit 
evidence obtained, whether a maternal uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubton the 
Campany's ability to continue as 8 going cancem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditors’ report, Our conclusion is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of auditor's report 
however, fulura events of condilians may cause the Company to cease fo conlinue as agoing concern: and 

@® Evaluate the overall presentaten, structure and content of the financial stalements, including the disclosures, and whather 
the financial statements represent the underlying ansactons and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in thefinancial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that 
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be Infivenced. We consider 
quaniiiative materiality and qualitative facters in (i) planning the scope of ouraudil work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in thefinancial statements 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significantaudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal contral that we identify during our audit, 

We also provide those charged with governance with a staiement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safequarnds, 

From the matters. communicated with those charged with governance, we detenmine those matters that were af most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the current perod anc are therefore the Key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
ourauditors' rapori unless law orreguiation precludes public disclosure about ihe matteror when, in extremely rare clreumstances, 
we determine that @ matter shauld not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication 

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

|. Astequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Onder, 2020 (“the Order’), issued by the Central Goverment of Incia in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2073, we give in the “Annexure-A”, a4 slalament on the 

matters specited in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order, to the extent applicable. 

ii, Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as required by Section 1433) of the Act, we 
report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all tha information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief ware 
necessary forthe purposes of our audit 

bi) Jnour opinien, proper books of account as required by law have been keg! by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books. 

o} The Batance Sheet, the Statementof Profitand Loss (including Oiner Comprehensive Income), Staiement.of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows daaltwith by this Raport are in agreement with the books of account. 

ad) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the requirements specified under Sectlan 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, 

2) On the basis of written representation received from the directors as on March 34, 2025, and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as.on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as director in terms. of 
Section 164 (2) of tha Act 

f) With respect tothe adequacy of the internal financial controls wilh reference to Financial Statements of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer io our separate Report in “Annexure 8", Gur renort expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Campany's intemal canirol; and 

g) (With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 207 4and subsequent amendments thereto, In our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to les: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in itsFinancial Slatements. Refer 
Noie no. 35 tothe accampanyingFinancial Siatements; 
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i. The Company did not have any long-lenm contrasts inchiding derivative contracts fer which here were any material 
foreseeable tosses; 

ii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company, 

iv 

a.The management has represented that, to ine best of its Knowledge and beliel, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or Kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whetherrecorded in writing oratherwise, that the Intermediary shall: 

@ directly of indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever {"Uftimate 
Baneliciaries") by or on behalf of the Company or 

@ provide any quarantea, security or the like to or or behall of tha Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

6. The management has represented, thal, tothe best of its knovdedge and belief, no funds have been received by [he 
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded inwriting or otherwise, that the Company shall: 

@ directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Party or 

@ provide any guarantee, security of the like from-oron behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

o. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (ivila) and (b) alone 
contain any material mis-statement, 

¥. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year, 

vi According to tha information and explanations given tous and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 

the accounting software used for maintaining its books of account has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) and was 
Tunctional throughout the financial yearending an 31 March, 2025 

For Chaturvedi & Co LLP senda 
Chartered Accountants Membership No.; 318210 Place- Kolkata 
Firm Registration No. 302137E/E300286 nin. 98378 10BMRKGGEGES Date- 30/05/2025 

“Annoxure-4” To The Independent Auditars’ Report 

[Referred to in Paragraph (i) under "Report on Other Logal and Regulatory Requirements" section of our Independent 
Auditors' Report] 

(i) 

(i 

{a} 

(b) 

(c} 

(a) 

i] 

(a) 

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situations 
of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company has no intangitie assets 

As perthe information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the record of the Company, 
ihe Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically venfied by the management during the year, which in our 
opinion is faasonable, having ragard to the size of Company and nature of its business. No discrepancies hava bean 
noticed onthe physical verification 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the title deeds 
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising immovable properties of land and building, are in the name of 
the Company as on (he balance sheel date, 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year, 

According to the information and explanations given te us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, there are no proceedings initlated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under 
the of Benami Property (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

As informed the Inventories of the Company, have been physically verified by lhe management during the year. In our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the frequency of such verification is reasonable 
and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrapancias were noticed on 
verification batween the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of 
inventory, 
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(6) According tothe information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination of the records of the 
Company. the Company has not been Sanctioned Working capital limits in exeess of five crore rupees, in aggregate. 
from banks of financial institution on the basis of security of current assets 

(ii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to 
companies, firms. Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2014 as such provisions of paragraph 3(in) of the said order are notapplicable, 

(iv) Aceerding to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has not granted any loans to directors or any other person in whom the director is interested as covered under 
Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2073, Further, the provisions of Section 186 relating to loans, investments, guarantees, 
and securily have been duly complied with, wherever applicable, 

jv) The Company has not accepted any deposiisor amounts which are daamed to be deposits from the public within the 
meaning of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of fhe Act, In respect of overdue earnast money deposits and 
security deposits, Management is of the view that overdue earnest money deposits and security deposits of 
Ssuppliers/conlractors appeanng inthe books ara in lhe nalure of retenlon money for perormance of contracts far supply of 

goods and services and accordingly, not to be treated as deemed deposits by virtue of amendment in rule 2, sub rule (1), 
clause (c) of the Companies (Accepiance of Daposits) Amendment Rules 2016. 

(vi) Based on the information available and explanations given tous, the maintenance of Cost records has not been specified by the 
Central Governmantunder section 148(1)aftha Companies Act, 2013 for any al the products manufactured by the company. 

(vil) (a) According to the information and explanations given te us, during the year, he Company has generally been reguiar in 
depositing with appropriate suthontes undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Sernaices Tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, Value Added Tax, 
Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable to it, There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Sanvice tax, duty of 
custom, duty of excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrear as at March 31, 2025 fora 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b)  Accerding to the information and explanations given to.us-andd as per the records of tha Company examined by us, the 
particulars of dues of Sale tax, Incame tax and Central excise, which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute as at March 341, 2025are given below: 
  

  

              

Sorial home of ihe Nature of Poriad to which the Forurntt where 

Na Statute dues amount relates pending 

Goods & GST Department, 
1 GST Service Tax 2018-20 Kolkata 

iviiil} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company. thers were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income thal have been surrendered or 
dischosed as income dunng the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43071961), 

(1x) 
(a) Inour opinion and onthe bass of infonmation and exptanations given to.us by the management, we are of the opinion that the 

Company has notdefauited in repayment ofloans-of ler borrowings orn the payment of interest thereon toary lender. 

(6) According to the information and explanations given te us and on the basis of our examination of the records of ihe 
Company, the Company has not beendeclared a willful defaulterby any bank or financial institution of olher lender, 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obiained 

(4) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has not raised any fund on short- tern basis. 

(8) According to the infermation and explanations given lo us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of 
the Gampany, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of orto meet the 
obligations ofits subsidiaries or joint ventures, Acoomingly. clause 3/ix je) of the Orderis notapplicable. 

(7) According te the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company 
has ot faised loans during lhe year on the pledge of sequnles held in its subsidiaries or joint ventures. Accordingly, 
Cause I(i}(f)otthe Orderis notapplicable, 

(x) 

(a) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given tows, the Company has not raised any money by 
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year as such, clause 3{x (a) of the 
Order is not applicable, 

(5) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records af the Company, 
the Company hes not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly or optionally 

convertible debentures dunng the year. Accordingly, clause 3.(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable io the Company. 
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(xii) 

(xii) 

(xiv) 

(xv) 

(xvi) 

(xviii) 

(xviii) 

(ioc) 

(xx) 

BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

{a) Based on examination of the books and records of he Company and according to the infermation and explanations 

gven lo us, Considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the 
ompany oron the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2074 with the Central Gavarnment., 

{c) Aceording to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints have been received by the 

(a) 

() 

(a) 
(b} 
(c) 
(d} 

company during the year, 

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as such, reporting under clauses 3(xii) (a), (b) and ic) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanations given to usand based on our éxamination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties arin compliance with Section 177 and 186 of the Act where applicable and details 
af such transactions have been disclosed in the Note No, 39 of financial stalemenis as required by ihe applicable 
accounting standards. 

The company (s having Intemal Audi Department responsible for carrying oul the internal audit-as per thea approved 
aBlinlt plan, The internal eiuctit System adopted by the intarnal audit department is commensurate with the size and nalure 

of the business ofthe company. 

\We have considered the intemal audit reports for the yaar under audit, submitted by Intemal Audit Department ta the 
Company during the year and till data, in determining the nature, timing and extanLof our audit procedures 

According to the information and explanations given to Us and as represented to us by the management and based on 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors 
orpersons connected with him. Accordingly, clauses 3(xv) ofthe Order are notapplicable. 

According to the informaben and explanations given tous and based.on our examination of the records of the Company, 

The Company is-not required to be registered undersection 45-lA.of ha Reserve Bank of india Act 1934, 

The company has notconducted any Mon- Banking Financtal.or Housing Finance activities during the year, 

The Company is nota ‘Core Invesiment Gampany (Cl) as defined inthe regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India 

The Group does nothave any CHC; 

Accordinyy, causes Siw) (a, (b), (cland (d)ofthe Ordarare notapplicable, 

The Company hasincurred cash losses in the current financial year of INR69,90,000 andhas not incurred any cash loss 
inthe immediately preceding financial year, 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, Accordingly, clause 3(xvill) of the Order is not 
applicable, 

According to the information and explanations given tous and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 

slalamants, our knowledge of he Board of Directors and management! plans and based of our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe thatany matenal 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audil report that the Company is not capable of meeting Its thabilittes existing al 
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balange sheet cate. We, 
however, state that this is notan assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that ourreportingis 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within.a period of one year fram ihe balance sheet date, will get discharged by tha Company as and 
when they fall due 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, 
the provisions of Section 135.of the Companies Act. 2013, relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are mot applicable 
tothe company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx)(a)and Sicx)(b) of ihe Order is notapplicable, 

For Chaturvedi & Co LLP ate 
Chartered Accountants M. No: 348240 Place- Kolkata 

Firm Registration No. 302137E/E300286 | 4 oes ag04BMRKGGEEGS Date- 30/05/2025 
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“Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report” 
[Referred to in Paragraph (ii) (f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our 
Independent Auditors’ Report] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") 

We have audited the intemal financial controis with reference tofinancial statements of Bhagawati Oxygen Limited (the Company’) 
as.atMarch 31,2026 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company forthe year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financal controts based on the intemal 

control wilh reference lofinancial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementaten and maintenance of acequaig 
internal financial controis thal were aperating effectively for ensuring the orderly and effisent conduct of its business, including 
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements . 
based on our audit, We conducted our audil in accordance with the Guidance Nola on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (ihe “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India-and the Standards on Auditing 

prescribed under Section 143/10) of the Act, to the extentapplicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit io obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial conirol wih reference to financial statemenis was established and 
maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects, 

Our audit involves performing procedures ta obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls syatem 
with referance to financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of intemal financial controls with reference 
tofinancial statements included obtaining an understanding of intemal fmancial controls with reference to financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating efactivaness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including tha assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud of error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Company's intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements. 

4 Company's intemal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A, Company's intemal financial control with reference to financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to tha maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions ard dispositions of the asgets of tha Company: (2) provide reasonable assurance 
thal ransactions ara recorded as nacessary to parmil preparation of financial stalaments in accordance wilh ganerally accepled 

accounting principles, and thatrecalpts and expenditures of the Company are boing made only in accadance with authorizations 

of management. and directors of the Company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention ar timaly detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect onthe financial statemenis. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference tofinancial statements, including the possibility of 
collusion of improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
penods are subject to the isk thal lhe internal financial control wilh reference to financial slalements may become inadequate 
because of changes.in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the polichas or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

in our opinion, to tne best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in allmatenal respects, 

an adequate intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such intemal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the intemal control with reference to financial 

sistaments citena established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note 

on Adil of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of India, 

For Chaturvedi & Co LLP cee 
Chartered Accountants M. No: -348290 Place- Kolkata 
Firm Registration No, 302137E/E300288 join. on378210BMRKGGEEES Date- 30/05/2025 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025 
NOTE 
NO 

Parthculars 

Assets 
Non-Currant Assets 
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
b) Financial Assets 
i) Investments 
i) Gther Financial Assets 
cc} Other Non-Curnent Assets 

Current Assets 
a) Inventories 
b} Financial Assets 
i} Trade Receivables 
ii) Cash-and Cash Equivalents 
iii} Other Bank Balances 
iv) Loans 
¥) Other Financial Assets 
c¢} Other Currant Assets 

Total Assets 

Equity and Liabilities 

Equity 
a) Equity Share Capital 
b} ther Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
a} Financia! Liabilities 
|} Borrowings 
ii) Oiher Financial Liabilities 
b) Other Non Current Liabilities 
¢} Deffered Tax Liabilities (Met) 

Current Liabilities 

a} Financial Liabilities 
|) Borrowings 
ii) Trade Payables 
iii} Other Financial Liabilities 
b) Other Current-Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

Company Overview 
Significant Accounting Polinies & 
Notes on Accounts 

a 

m
u
 

10 
1 

le 
{a 

ia 
15 

16 
iT 
18 
18 

20 
21 
az 
2a 

4 

2-40 

Amount in Rs ‘ooo 

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

As at As at 

March 34,2025 March 31 2024 

14,025 14457 

10,692 8,135 
47 446 45.048 

72,163 67,640 

216 216 

2? 253 29.194 
52 201 

5,417 6,282 
126 65 

1,788 2.164 
4279 7.622 

33,171 45,744 

111,334 1,713,383 

23,130 23,150 
Sri 21.8655 

33,707 44,995 

1,560 3.072 
ar a4 

36,527 38.939 
1,055 BOF 

41,379 42.642 

14,576 10.089 
7 662 7.808 

go 607 
ai 7 bag 

30,248 25,946 
  

  

1,13.383 1,171,334 1 

  

The accompanying notes fom an integral part of the Financial Statements 
AS per our report attached of even date 

For Chaturvedi & Go. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn No.: 302737E! EI00286 

Amit Kummer 

Partner 
M. No: -315210 
UDIN:- 25318210BMRKGG6665 
Place: Kolkata 

Date » 30th May 2025 

Suresh Kr Sharma 

(DIN : 00047450) 

Sukanta Bhattacharjee 
Chief Finance Officar 

For and on behalf of the Boam of Directors 

Himanshu Sharma 

Managing Director 

(DIN - 00041181) 

Ritu Damani 
Company Secretary 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025 

Vil. 

  

Amount in Rs ‘ooo 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars NOTE Forthe yearended For the year ended 
NO March 31,2025 March 34,2024 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 24 6,100 #235 
Ghar Incamea 25 6,664 63,858 

Total Income 16,764 71,093 

Expenses 

Cost of Material Consumed 26 = a 
Purchases of Traded Goods aT 3,822 3,124 

Changes in Inveniory af Finished Goods, Work in Progress & Stock in Trade =28 = {2} 
Manufacturing and Operating Expenses 20 1,084 2,02 
Employee Benefit Expenses 30 6,377 18,526 
Finance Costs 34 1,223 4.028 
Depreciation and Amartisation Expense 3 430 5.404 
Other Expenses a2 6,909 41,407 

Total Expenses 21,855 65,549 

Profit'(Loss) before Tax (5,091) 5,44 

Tax Expense: (830) B30 

Current Tax 248 602 
Deferred Tax 

(4.509) 4,112 
Profitl(Loss) for the period 

Other Comprehensive Income 
lterns that will not be classified to statement of Prefit or Loss 
Remeasuramentof dafinad post employment denefit alan a1 {705} 

Income Tax Effect - - 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (4,478) 4,007 
Eamings per Equity Share ad 

Basic (1.95) 178 Diluted 
(1.95) 178 

Company Overview 1 
Significant Accounting Politias and Notes on Accounts 240 

  

The accompanying notes forman integral part of the Financtal Statements 
As per our report attached of even date 

For Chaturvedi & Go. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn No.: 302137E/ ES002686 

Amit Kumar Suresh Kr Sharma 
Partner Chairman M. No: -318210 Oh. ORAS 
UDIN:- 25318210BMRKGG6665 ( 60) 
Place: Kolkata 

Sukanta Bhattacharjee ta = 30th May 2025 
pale , Chief Finance Officar 

For and on behalf of the Boam of Directors 

Himanshu Sharma 

Managing Director 

(DIN - 00041181) 

Ritu Damani 
Company Secretary 
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025 

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

                    

  

a. Equity Share Capital Amount in Rs ‘ood 

Balance at 1 April 2023 23,130 

Changes in Equity Share Capital During the Year - 

Balance at 31 March 2024 23,130 

Changes in Equity Share Capital During the Year - 

Balance at 34 March 2025 23,130 

b, Other Equity 

investment Retalned Other Deferred Income) toi) Other 
Capital | Allowance Eaminas Comprehensive| of Capital Equity 

Reserve Reserve q Income Subsidy q 

Balance at 1 April 2023 1,500 60 16,144 (656) 1,620 16,668 

Proft'\Loss) for the year - - 4,112 - - 4,742 

Other Comprahansive income - - - (105) z (105) 

Addition during the year . = : is 7 . 

Tax perimining to earlier years - “ = - - r 

Deduction during the year (810) (810) 

Balance at 31 March 2024 1.500 60 20,256 (761) 810 21.865 

Balance at 1 April 2024 1.500 60 20,256 (761) 810 21,665 

Profil!(Loss) for the year - - (4,505) - - (4,509) 

Other Comprehensive income - - - af - a4 

Ariditian during the year - * = = = 

Tax pertaining to earter years “ - 

Deduction during the year - : - : (810) (810) 

Balance at 341 March 2025 1,500 60 15,747 (730) * 16.577 

For Chaturvedi & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants For and on behall of the Board of Directors 
Firm Regn No: 302737E/ Es00286 

oe Suresh Kr Sharma Himanshu Sharma 

M. No: -318210 Chairman Managing Director 
UDIN:- 25318210BMRKGGEG65 (DIN: OOD4 1130) (DIN: GO047787) 
Place: . 3 ; 
Hote: : mn ve a025 sukanta Bhattacharjee Ritu Damani 

Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary 
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 Amount in Rs ‘ooo 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars As at As at 
March 34,2025 March 34,2024 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax (5,097) 5544 
Adjustments for : 
Finance Cast (Net) (2.272) 2,005 

Depreciation! Amoartisation 430 5,404 

(GainLoss from sale of Fixed Assets . (87,732) 

(Gain}iLoss fram sale of mutual funds = - 
(Gain)! Loss on fair market valuation on investment (2,528) (Bad) 
Dividend Income a4) (28) 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (9,492) (45,651) 

(Increase)! Decrease in: 

Inventories (2) 

Non-Current'Currant Financial and Other Assets 3.689 (27,006) 

Trade Payables, Other Financial Liabilities and Currant Liabilities ase 24.447 
Cash Generated from Operation (5,554) (42,212) 

Direct Tax Paid : “ 
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities (5,554) (42,212) 

Cash Flow from Investing Activitles 

Sale of Fixed Assets/CWIP z 90,536 
Purchase of Fixed AssetsiCWIP 7 (86) 

Proceeds from Sale of Investments (29) (#5) 

Interest Recaived 3.671 1,050 
Dividend Received 31 26 
Net Cash used in Investing Activities 3,075 91,493 

Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

Repayment from Borrowings (FZ) (22,297) 

Proceeds from Borrowings 4.489 (18,655) 

Interest Paid (1,210) (4,509) 
Net Cash used in Financing Activities 1.567 (55,455) 

Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+8+C) (103) (6,204) 

Cash & Cash Equivalents-Opening Balance 201 6,405 

Cash & Gash Equivalents-Closing Balance oe 201 

  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financsal Statemants 
As por our report attached of even date 

For Chaturvedi & Go. LLP 
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Boam of Directors 

Firm Regn No.: 302137E/ ES002686 

armas Munn Suresh Kr Sharma Himanshu Sharma 
M. No: -318240 Chairman Managing Director 
UDIN:- 253182 10BMRKGGGG6S (BIN : 00041 #50) (DIN : 00041181) 

Soria mae si an26 Sukanta Bhattacharjee Ritu Damani 
, Chief Finance Officar Company Secretary 
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1. Company Overview 

Bhagawati Oxygen Limited (“the Campany”) Is a public limited cempany incorporated in India, having its registered office situated 
Plot §, Sector 25, Ballabgarh, Haryana- 121004. The Company has lis shares listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (SE). Bhagawatl 
Oxygen Limited js a manufacturing and engineering company with core focus on industrial gas manufacturing, technology, system 
and equipments 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

{a) Basis of Preparation 

These accounts have been prepared inaccordance with Indian Accounting Standards (tnd AS) prescribed unger Section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2073 ("Act") read with relevant Rules. These financial staiements are prepared in accordance with hisiorical cast 
convention on the accrual basis except for cenain financial instruments which are measured al fair values, 
The Company has adopted all the Ind.45 and the adoption was carned out in accordance with Ind AS. 101- First time adoption of 
Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as 
presenbed under Section 144 of the Act, read with relevant Rules which was the previous GAAP Reconciliations and deserpleons 
ofthe effect of the transition has been sunimarized in note 42. 

(b) Use of Accounting Estimates and Assumptions 
The preparation of the financial statements, in confonmity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS. requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, reyenue and expenses 
and disclosure of cantingent liabilities al the date of the financial statements, Actual results could differ fram thase estimates, 
Management balieves that tha estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Any 
revision to the accounting estimaias is recognized prospectively. 

Infarmation about ertical judgments in applying accounting policies, as-weil as estimates and assumptions that have the most 
significant effect on the carrying amaunts of assets and liabilites within the nextfinancial year are included in the following notes : 

a) Measurement of Detined Benefit Obligations 

b) Measurement and likelihood of the occurrence of provisions and contigenties 

c) Recognition of the Deferred Tax Assets: Liabilities 

qd) Key assumptions used in Fai Valuation Methods of Financial Assets & Liabilities 

{(c) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is recognized when all significant risks and rewards of their 
ownership are transfarred to the customer as per the terms of the contract and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the 

amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection, Revenue is measured atthe 

fair value of the consideration received or receivable and incluties excise duty and are net of returns and allowances, trace 
discounts, volume rebates and sales tax. 

DBaidend income is recognized when the company's right to receive dividend is established: Interest income is recognized using 
the effective interest method, Other claims (including claims of price escalation and minimum offiake quaraniea} are recognized 
when there ls a certainty of realization and can be measured faliably. 

(d) Property, Plant & Equipment 
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated-at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, The 

cost of Property, Plant & Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or 
levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset toits working condition for its intended use. Interest and other financial 
charges on loans borrmawed specifically for acquésitton of capital assets are capitalized till the start of commercial production. 

Depreciation is provided on the straight lina method over the estimated useful lives of assets. and are in line with the requirements of 
Pan CofSchedule ll ofthe Companies Act, 2013, The estimated useful lives areas follaws: 

Building 30 Years 

Plant® Machinery 8-25 Years 

Fumiture.& Foctures: 10 Years 

Office Equipment 4 Years 

Vehicles 6 Years 

Computer 3 Years 

Advances pald towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as 
Capital Advances under other Non-Current Assels and Lhe cost of assels nol pul lo use before such dale are disclasad under 

‘Capital Work in Progress’. The costand related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Financial Statements upon sale 

or retrement of the assetand the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit-& Loss. The method of 

depreciation, useful lives and residual values.are reviewed at each financial year end, 

(@} Intangible Assets 

Intangible Assets acquired Separately ara measured on Initial recognition al cost Intangible Assets acquired in a business 

combination is valued at their fair value-al the-date of acquisition. Following inital recodnithon, intangible assets are carried at cost 

less accumulated amortization and accunwiated impainment losses, if any. 

The useful lives of Intangible Assets ara assessed as either finite or indefinite. 
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Intangible Assets with finite lives are amorized over the useful economic life and assessed for impainnent whenever there ig an 
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amorization period and the amonization meihod for an Intangible Asset 
with a finite useful le are reviewed al the end of each reporting penod. The amortization expense on Intangitle Assels with finlia 
lives Is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The Company amortizes intangible assets over thelr estimated useful lives 
using the straightline method. 

Intangible Assets with indefinile useful lives are not amortized, butare tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the 
cash-generating unil level. The assesament of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues 
te be suppenable. Hf onol, the change in useful life fram indefinite to finite is made on @ prospective basis. 
Gains or losses arising fram derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of ihe assel and are recognized in the Statement of Profil & Loss whan the asset is 
derecognized. 

(F) Financial Instruments 

Initial Recognition. and Measurement 

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial fabililles when it becomes @ party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Alfinancial-assets and liabilities are recognized at fair valve on initial recognition, exceptior rade recetvables which 
are initially measured at inransaction poe. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial 
assets and financial liabillties, which are not al fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initia! recognition 
Regular way purchase and sale of financial assels are accounted for al wade date 

Subsequent Measurement 

a. Non Dorivative Financial instruments 

(i) Financial Assets carried at amortized cost 
A financial asset ils subsequently measured at amortized cost if itis held within a business model whese objective |s to hald the 
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to-cash 
flows thatare solely payments af principal and intereston tha principal amount outstanding, 

(ii) Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset ls subsequently measured al fair value through olher comprehensive income if itis held within a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both oollecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ara solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding, The Company has rade an imevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to 
present the subsequent changes In falr value In other comprehensive income based on lis business model. 

(iii) Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Afinancial asset whichis not clagsified in any of the above categorles are subsequently fair valued through profit or logs. 

(iv) Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are subsequently caried at amorized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent 
consideration recognized ina business combination which is subsequently measured al fair valve through profit and loss. For trada 
and oller payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the 
short maturity of these instruments. 

(v) Investmentin subsidiaries 

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost in the separate tinancial statements. 

b. Derivative Financial Instruments 

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mitigate the risk of 
changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures, Such derivative financial instrumanis are initially recegnized al fair 
value on the daie-on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value through. profit or boss 

and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in otherincame. 

Derecegnition of Financial instruments 

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it 
transfers the financial assel and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109_A financial llabilily (ora part of a financial 
lability) is deracognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligaton specified in the contract is discharged or 

cancelled orexpires, 

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Company uses valuation techneques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inpuls.and minimizing the use of unobservable inpuls. All methods 
of assessing. fair valua result In: general aporoximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized, 

Allassets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are catagorined within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thet is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices Inactive markets for identical assats or llablilthes 
Level 2— Valuation tachniques for which the lowest level input thatis significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 

indiractty observable 

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 
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(h) impairment 

Impainnent is recognized based on the following principles: 

(i) Financial Assets: The Company recognizes loss albowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) modal for the financial 

assets which are not fair Valued through profit or loss, Loss allowance for trade recenvables with na significant financing companent 
is Measured alan amount equal te life time ECL. Forall other financial assets, expected credit losses ane measured at an amount 
equal tothe 12 month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit isk from initial recognition in which case those are 
measured at life time ECL, The amount of expected credit lossas (or reversaljthat is required to adjust the loss allowance at the 
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss 

(ii) Non-Financial Assets: Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are 
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in citcumstances indicate that they might be impaired. 
Otherassets are tested for impainment! whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thal the carrying amount may notbe 
recoverable, An impairment loss is recogniaed for lhe amount by which the assels carrying amounl exceeds its recoverable 
amount The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value bess costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of 
assessing impainment, asseis are grouped af the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash inflaws which are 
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assels (cash- generating unit) Non-financial assets other 
than goodwill that suffered an lmpalfrment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at ihe and of reperting period. 

(i) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions.are recognized when the Company has a present obligation asa result of a past event, for which itis probable thata 
fash outflow will be required anda reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent lisbilities are 
disclosed when the Company has & possible obligation or a present obligation and if is probeble that e cash outflow will not be 
required to setiie the obligation. Provisions & Contingent Liahillies are revalued al aach Balance Sheet date. Contingent Assets 
are not recegnized in the financial statements. However, when the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related assetis 
nota contingent assetand itis appropriately recognized. 

(J) Inventory 

The inventiories.are valued atcost or nat realisable value whichever is lower except for work in progress and advertising maternal 
which are valued al cost. The Costis calculated on weighted average method. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the narmal 
course of business In bringing such Inventories to. its location and includes, where applicable, appropriate overheads based on 
normal level of activity. 

(k) Foreign Currency Transactions & Transtations 

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupes, These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee. 
Transactions In foreign currencies entered into by the company are accounted al the exchange rates prevailing on the dale of the 
transaction. Galns & losses arising on account of realization ara accounted for in tha Statement of Profit & Loss. 
Monetary Assets & Liabilities in foreign currency that are outstanding atthe yearend are translated at the year end exchange rates 

and the resultant gain/inss is accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss, 
(!) Employes Bonafits 

Defined Contribution Plan 
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to the regulatory authorities tos defined contribution retirement benefit 
plan for qualifying employees, where the Company has no further obligations. Both the employees and (ha Company make 

monthly contributions tothe Provident Fund Plan equalto a specfied parcantage of the covered employee's salary. 

Defined Benefit Plan 

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, comprising of Gratuity fund with Life Insurance Corparation of India. 
The Company's liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method at the end of the year in accordance with 
the provision of Ind AS 19- Employee Benefits 

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheatas an assai or lability, Gains and losses 
through re-messuremenis of the net defined benefit liabilityfasset).ane recognized in other comprehensive income and are not 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent penods. The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, In excess of the yieids computed 
by applying the discountrate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in other comprehensive income. The 
effects of any plan amendments are recognized in the Statement of Profité Loss 

Short tennemployee benefits are charged offal the undiscounted amountin the yearin which the related services are renderad_ 

(m) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset thai necesearly lakes a substantial 
period of time te get reacly for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are 
axpensed in the period In which they occur, Borrowing costs.consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs. 

(nj Leases 
Leases under which the company assumes substantially all the isks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. 
When acquired, such assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of fhe minimum lease payments at the inception of the 
lease, whichever is lower, Lease payments under operating eases are recognized as an expense on a Straight line basis in met 
profitin the Statement of Profit & Lass over the lease term. 
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(o) Government Grants 

The Company racegnizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them 
shail be compiled with and the grants will be received. Grants related to assets are treated as deferred income and are 

recognized as other income in the Statement of profit & tess on a systematic and rational basis over the usedul life of the asset. 
Grants related to income are recognized on a systematic basis over the periods necessary to match them with the related 
costs which they are intended to compensate and are deducted fram the expense in the stalamentol profit & logs. 

(p} Income Taxes 

Income Tax expanse represents the sum of lhe fax currenily payable and deferred tax. 

Current tax is the amount of income tases payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (tax loss) for a period. Taxable 
profit differs fram “profil before income tax” as reported in the stalament of profitand loss and other comprehensive income 
because ilexcludes liam of income or axpense thal are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes ems that 
are-never taxable of deductible. The Company's liability for current taxis caloulated using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substanively enacted by the end of the reporting penad, 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised forall taxable tamporary difierences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognised for all deductible tamporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which those deductible tamporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the lamporary 
difference arises from. goodwill or frorn the Initial recegnition (other than In a business combination) of other assets and 
liabilities ina transaction that affects neither the taxabie profitnor the accounting profit 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is raviewed al the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that itis 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow ail or partof ihe asset to be recovered. Unracognised 
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting year and are recognised to the extent that it has become 
probable thai sufficiant taxable profit will be available to allow all or partol the deferred tax assetto be recovered, 

Deferred tax assets and labilittes are measured ai the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability s 
setied or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period 
Cument and deferred tax are recognised in profit-or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. in which:case, the current and defemred tax are also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equily respectively. Where current lax or deferred fax arises from the initial accounting 
fora business: combinaton, the tax effectis included in the accounting forthe business combination, 

(q) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Gash and Gash Equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-tenmn deposits with an original 
maturity of three months orless, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changesin value 

(r) Earning per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period atiributable to the equity shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the panod. The weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for evenis such as bonus issue, bonus elementina nghis issue, share 
Spail, and reverse share spit (consolidation of shares) that have changed the numberof equity shares outstanding, without a 
eoresponding change infesources 

(5) Currentand Non-Current classification 

The Company presants assets and tiabiiitias in ha Balance Sheat based on currentnon-current classification. 

An assetis classified as currentwhern itis: 

1) Expected to be realised or Intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle, 

i) Held primarily forthe purpose af trading, 

fil) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting penod, or 

lv) Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to saltia a liabilily for atleast twelve months after 

the reporting penod 

Allability is classified as current when Its; 
i}itis expected to be settled in the narmat operating cycle, 

fi) tis due to be setiied within lwetve montis after the reporting period, ar 

Wi) There is no unconditional nght ta defersetiement of the liability for atleast twelve monihs after the reporting penod, 

All other liabilities are classified as non-curent. 

Detered lax assets and liabilities are classified as nonourrent, 

(t) Dividend 

Provision is made for tha amountof any diviiand declared, boing appropriately authorised and no longer at he discretion of 

the entity, on or before the end ofthe reporting peniod bul not distributed atthe end of the reporting period 

(u) Segment Reporting 

Revenue & expenses, assets & habihities are identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities 

ol the company 
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

Amount in Fs. ‘000 
  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

As at AS at 
Note 4° Investments March 34,2025 reh 31 

(i) Equity Instruments (Un-Quoted) 
Bhagawati Gas Lid 
90,000. Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each (PY 90,000 equity shares) 48 43 

(i) Mutual Funds (Queted) 
Nippon India ETF Gold BEES 6,998 257 
(92,500 units, P ¥ 92,500 units} 
SB! Gold GETS a,116 2438 
(40000 units, P ¥ 40000 units} 
HDFC Top 100 187 180 
(3,144 units, PY 3.447 units) 
HDFC Balanced Advantage Fund 93 86 
(2287 units, PY 2.450 units) 
OSP Black Rock Equity & Bond BS 7a 

(2,682 units, Poy 2 8a? urits) 

Nippon India Gold Savings Fund-G 2 2 

(B2 units, PY 82: units) 

Tata Treasury Advantage Fund-G G2 150 
(42 units, PY 42 units) 

10.644 087 

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments & Market Value thereof 10,644. & 087 
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 44 44 

Total {i+ii} 10,692 8,135 

Note 5 Other Financial Assets (Non- Current) 
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 
Earnest Money Depasil * - 
Security Deposits - with Others 143 79 

>with Related Parties 2,400 2.400 
Fixed deposit having onginal maturity more than 12 months 44,913 42,569 

Total 47 446 45,048 

Note 6 Other Non-Current Assets 
Capital Advances. - : 
Other Advances * . 

Total + = 

Note 7 Inventories 
(Valued at Cost, unless otherwise stated) 
Stock-in-Trade 6 5 
Others (Cylinders) 211 2H 

Total 216. 216 

Note § Trade Receivables 
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost 

(Unsecured, Considered Good} 

Trade Receivables 27 204 24,193 

Total 27 29.193 

 



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Trade Recolvables Ageing Schedule : 

BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

Amount in Fs. ‘000 

  

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
  

  

              

Particulars Less than] 6 months - More than| Total 
Bmonths| tyear |'*2¥ears|2-3 years) 3 years 

(Undisputed trade recaivables-considerad good 452 4,195 2,782 7,408 

(i)Undisouted trade receivables-considered doubtful = 

(Disputed trade raceivables-considered good 13,844 19, B44 

iwiDisouied trade recervables-considered doubthul 

  

The contract for supply of gas between Hindustan Copper Lid (HCL and the Company expired and not renewed, Thus the gas plant of 
ihe Company wee closed, The minimum offtake guaraniee amount receivable from HCL became subjucicad and the Company 
prefered arbitration, An award dated 1-6-22 was passed in favour of ihe Company forits dues upio February 2020 and pursuant to an 
orderof the Hon'te High Court dated 22-9-22 HCL has secured the award amountof Rs. 7.42 crores-to the Registrar, Calculta High 
Court The Company has participated and availed of the Vivad se Vishwas ll (Contracual Disputes) Scheme dated 21h May 2029 of 
ihe Government of Incla for settlement of disputes related to the arbitration award dated 1-56-22. Further, the Hon'ble High Gourt has 
appoolnted a sole arbitrator te adjudicate further disputes from March 2020 and onwards between HCL and the Company, 

Note 9 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Financial Assets carried at Amorised Cost 

Balance with Banks 

Gash in hand 
Cheques in hand 

Total 

Note 10 Other Bank Balances 
Fixed Deposits (Orginal maturity of Sto 12 months) 

Note 71 Loans (Current) 
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 
Advances to Employee 

Total 

Note 12 Other Financial Assets (Current) 

Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost 

(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Interest Receivable 

Note 13 Other Current Assets 
Balances with Excise & GST Deparment 
Balances with Statutory Authority (1 Tax) 

Ativance ta Related Party 

Advances to Creditors 

Total 

Amount in Rs. ‘000 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

AS at AS at 

5 159 
aT Ag 

92 201 

5aq7 6.282 

5.at7 6,282 

126 65 

126 65 

4,788 24184 

7B 64 

1,113 2,640 
352 203 

* 2,407 
2,814 Qate 

4279 7,622 
  

  

af 

 



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

Amount in Fs. ‘000 
  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

  

  

  

AS at As at 
March 34,2025 March 34,2024 

Note- 14 Equity Share Capital 
Authorised Capital 
4.000.000 (F ¥ 4,000,000) equity shares of Re. 10 each 40,000 40,000 

40,000 40.000 
issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital —ee—eee—er —ereeee—erere— 

2,912,968 (P ¥ 2,912,969) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 23,130 25.130 
23,130 23,130     

a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 

  

  

  

March 31.2025 March 31,2024 

No of shares. Rs. No of shares. 
Equity shares at the beginning of the year 2,972,968 23,730 2,312,969 23,130 
Add: Share issued during the year 4 a 4 2 

Equity shares at the end of the year 2,312,969 23,130 2,312,969 23,130   
  

b) Rights/preferences/restrictions attached to equity shares 
The company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equilyshares is antitled 

fo one vole per share In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of aquily shares will be aniitled lo receive ramaining 
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts: The distibution will ba in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the sharehotders. 

c) Shareholding of Promoters 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year “Change during 

Promoter Name No. “of total shares the year 

Suresh Kumar Shanna it 

Tara Devi Sharma 5.95 

Himanshu Sharma 3.15 

a Sharma 3.51 

Sharma & Sons HUF Zit 

Sharma 3.41 

Vivek Sharma 179 

Suresh Kumar Shanna & Sans HUF 71 

Kanta Devi 

Rakesh Samrat 

Chetan Kumar Chatureedi 

p. 

Kamakshi 6 

Mahesh Mittal 

BK Ratna Karan 

Ashok Kumar 

Shachi 

Mohan 

Hari Prasad Purba 

Baiwan 

os
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 
  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Note 15 Other Equity 

Capital Reserve 
As per last Balance Sheet 

Add: Addition dunng the period 

Balance a5 at the end of the period 

Investment Allawance Reserve 

As per last Balance Sheet 
Add: Addition during the period 

Balance as at the end of the period 

Retained Earnings 
As por last Balance Sheet 

Add: Tax pertaining to eanier years 

Add: Profit'(Loss) for the period 
Balance as at the end of the period 

Other Comprehensive Income 
As per last Baiance Sheet 

Add: Addition during the period 

Balance as at the end of the period 

Deferred Income of Capital Subsidy 

As per last Balance Sheet 
Add: Addition during the period 
Less: Deducton during the period 

Balance as at the end of the period 

Note 16 Borrowings (Non- Current} 
Financial Liabilithes carried at Amortised Cost 

Secured 
Term Loan Fram banks 

Lass: Currant Maturities of 

lang term term loan 

  

Amount in Fs. ‘000 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

As at As al 
March 31,2025 March 34.2024 

1,500 4,500 

1,500 1,500 

60 60 

60 60 

20,256 16,144 

(4,509) 4.112 
1,47 20,256 

(761) (656) 
34 105 

(730) iret 

810 1,620 

{810) (810) 
- B10 

16,577 21,865 

2,429 3,072 

1,069 - 
1,360 3,072     

Term Laan from Bank is $eoured by way of; (a) Exclusive hypothecation of plant & machinery and other moveable fixad assets of 
the company’s both present and proposed project situated at Ghatsila, Jharkhand; (b) first mortgage and hypothecation on the 
company's windmill assets situated al Tirunelveli, Tamil Nadu; (co) equitable mortgage of residential fat situated at Kolkata, West 
Bengal owned by Smt Tara Davi Shanna (dt) escrowing of ravenue stream of windmill operation and sale of oxygen and (a) 
quaranteed by Sri S Kk Shana. Sri Kimanshu Sharma and Smt Tara Devi Sharma. Term Loan ts payable in unequal instalments 
bagining 41-35-2018 

Note 17 Other Financial Liabilities (Non- Current) 
Financial Liabilithes carried at Amortised Cost 
Interest Accrued bul not die on borrowings 

Total 

Note 18 Other Liabilities (Non- Current) 
Recalved from High Court against arbitration award 

Provision for Gratuity 

Total 

  

  

a7 24 

a 24 

37,147 37.147 
4,780 1.792 

38,927 38,939     
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 
  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 Aqiaah te RS: eee 
As at As at 

March 31,2025 March 31.2024 

  

Note 19 Deferred Tax Liabilithes (Not) 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 

  

Related to time diffarance of Dapreciation on fixed assets 1,055 807 

Total ——__ 55 BT 

Note 20 Borrowings (Current) 
Financial Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost 
Secured 

From Banks 

Cash Credit 2,505 4,489 
Overdraft facilitias from banks under lian of TOR 11,004 8,700 
Current Matunty of Term Loan 1,069 - 

Total 
  

14,578 10,089 

* Cash credit from banks are secured by exclusive hypothecation aver entire stocks, book debis and other current assets of the 

company. Interest Rate) 12.70% 

Note 21 Trade Payables 
Financial Liabilities carried at Amortised Cast 

Due le - Micra Small & Medium Enterorises (MSMED) = = 

  

- Other than MSMeER 7,562 7,808 

Total 7,562 7,808 
  

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule : 

  

  

  

          
  

    

  

  

. Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars Less than te2years | 229 years More than Total 

1 year . wie 3 years 

{) MSME 

(li) Others 3,052 1,864 08 2,148 7, Ba2 

{ii} Disputed diies-MSME 

(iv) Disputed dues-Others 

Note 22 Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 
Financial Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost 

Employee Benefits 
(i) Salary 154 142 
(ii) Leave Encashmeni 426 BOT 
(ii) Macical Allowance 218 TOG 
(iv) Provident Fund & £51 96 62 

Total Boq 607 

Note 23 Other Current Liabilities 

Statutory & Other Ques Payables 334 1.084 

Related Parties 4,815 1220 
Others 1,968 4.768 

Total 717 7.042 

  

4p)



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 
  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Note 24 Revenue from Operations 
Sale of Manufactured Goods (including Excise Duties) 

Industrial Gases - Ohygen 

Power: Wind 
Sale of Traded Goods 
Industrial Gases - Oxygen 

Specialty Gases & Cylinders & Others 

Total 

Note 25 Other Income 
Interest Income from Bank Deposits 
Dividend 

Interest Received fram Inoome Tax 

Miscellaneous Income 

Renewable Energy Generation Incentive 

Export Sales 
Profit.on sale_of Fixed Assets 

Gain/ Loss on fair market valuation on investment 

Forex Gain! Loss 
Liability No Longer Required Written Of 
Deferred Income of Capital Subsidy 

Total 

Note 26 Cost of Material Consumed 

Industrial Gases - Oxygen 

Total 

Note 27 Purchase of Traded Goods 
Industrial Gases - Oxygen 

Specialty Gases & Cylinders & Others 

Total 

Note 28 Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods, 
Work in Progress and Stock in Trade 
Opening Steck (Stock in Trade) 
Less: Closing Steck (Steck in Trade) 

Total 

Note 29 Manufacturing Expenses 

stores & Spares consumed 

Power & Fuel 
Rena & Maintenance to: 
Buildings 
Plant and Machinery 

Others 

Total 

Note 30 Employes Benefit Expenses 

Salaries, Wages. Bonus and Gratuity 

Contribution to Provident Fund, ESD& Other Funds 

Staff Welfare Expenses 

Total 

Amount in Fs. ‘000 

For the year ended For the year endad 

  

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

4,002 3,878 

4,098 3.957 

a - Fi |!) ! a A =) 

3,487 2016 
Fi 8 

8 7 
. 5S 

4,149 : 
- 1,162 
- BT, tae 

2,528 44 
= 116 

651 90 
#10 B10 

#004 ba,058° 
  

  

  

3,822 a.124 

  

  

  

  

3,622 3,124 

216 214 
216 216 

eo 

429 183 

= 112 
684 1.504 

281 SAG 

7,094 2,062 

7,646 18,621 
208 256 
523 649 
  

Bair 19,526 
ee 
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 
  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Note 34 Finance Costs 
Interest paid on - tarm loans from Banks 

-working capital loan from bank 
- on others 

Total 

Mote 32 Other Expenses 

Rent 
Raies, Taxes & Licence Fee 
Rank charges and commission 
Travelling and Conveyance 
Directors’ Sitting Fee 
Auditors’ Remuneration © 
(i) Statutory Auctit 
(il) Limited Review Report 

(iil) Certification 
(hv) Taxes Aue 

(¥) Internal Auellt 

Cammunication Expenses 
Legal and Professional Expenses 
Advertisement Expenses 
Charity and Donation 

Insurance Charges 

Vehicle Running & Maintanance 
Caniribution to Scientific Research Institutions 
suindry Balance Written Off 
Expenses related to Export Sales 
Electricity Charges 
Listing Fee 
Office Expenses 
Festival Expenses 
Cammission Charges 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

Total 

Note 33 Effective Tax Reconciliation 

  

Amount in Fs. ‘000 

  
    

  

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31,2025 March 34,2024 

243 3,000 

oTd Be 

T 696 

1223 4,028 

1.880: BIT 

18 42 
aa grt 

1,037 1874 

36 25 

114 114 
10 10 

13 13 
15 15 

103 a8 
627 1,184 
63 229 
40 246 

214 500 

416 544 
24 ie 
36 103 

- 21,515 
255 2iT 
325 325 
105 268 

153 178 
BBE: - 
St. 955 

6,909 34,407 
  

Areconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory Income tax rate tothe income 
hifore Income taxes is summarised babow : 

Particulars 

Income Tak Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 

Current Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Total Income Tax Expense recognised in the current year 

Profit/[{Loss} before Income Taxes 

Enacted Tax Rate in India 

Computed expected tax expenses 

Tax benefit! incentive on account of unabsorbed losses 

Other Adjustments 

Current Tax Provision (Aj 

Timing difference in depreciable assets 

Deffered Tax Provision |B} 

Income Tax Expense (+E) 

Effective Tax Rate 

March 31,2025 

Amount in Rs, ‘000 

March 34,2024 

  

  

  

  

(220) 830 
248 ang 

(582) 1,432 

(5,091) 5 54a 
15.60% 15-60% 

z a3 

: B30 

248 ang 
248 602 

O% 25.83% 
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 
  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Note 34 Earnings per Equity Share 

Particulars 

Profit after Tax 

Weighted Average Number of Shares (Face Value Rs10) 

Earnings Par Share - Basic & Ciluted (Rs.) 

Note 354, Contingencies and Commitments 

}Contingent Liabilities   
Particulars 

GST Taz demands 

i) Commitments 

Amount in Fs. ‘000 

  

  

  

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

(4,509) 4,712 
2,413 23135 

(4.95) 1.78 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Ta3 - 

Taa - 
  

Commitmentol Capital Expenditure not provided for in the accounts eslimated at Rs. Nil (000) (Pravious yaar Fis, Mil ('000)) 

IN)Guarantees. given 
  

Particulars   
Bank Guarantaa 

  

March 31,2025 March 34,2024 
  

39,375 aY 618 

35 B. Trade Receivables and Trade Payables amounting io Rs.27.253 (000)and Rs.7,662(000) respectively are subject to 

confirmation as-on 31-03-2025, 

35 C. The Company has no transactions with companies struckoff under section 246 of the Companies Act. 2013 or section 

Sed of the Companies Aol, 1256. 

Note 36 Ratios 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

Mareh March Variance 
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31,2025 31,2024 tin %) 

(a) Current ratio Curent assets Current liahililles 4.29 1.75 a2Eo, 

fb) Debt-Equity ratio Tate! Debt Equity 0.40 029 37% 

(c) Debt service coverage raflia Earnings availabla | Debt Service (2) (0.234 1.06 -121% 
for debt service (1) 

(d) Retum on equity (ROE) Net Profil aftertax | Average Equity 10.65%, 5 4B 24206 

(2) Inventory tumover ratio Cost of Goods Sold | Average Inventary (0.07) 

(f) Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue Average trade o.29 O24 20% 
recealvable 

(9) Trade payables tumover ratio Purchase of goods Average trade 0.64 oF ry 

& her expenses payabke 

(h) Net capital turnover ratio Revenue Working Capital oot 0.36 152% 

Ui) Net profil ratio Neat Profit Revenue 55.67% AG Ba Tey, 

(j) Return on Capital Employed (ROCCE) Earings before Capital amployed oA. 77% 10,90% -144% 
interest and tax (3)           

Notes : 

1 Mel profit before tax + Non Cash Operating expenses + Inierest + Other Adjustments like loss on sale of fixed: assets etc 

2 Curentdebi obligations + interes! Paymanis 

3. Total assets- Current llabilities 
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

Amount in R's. ‘000 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 Sena 

Note 37 Benefit 

       

  

March 31 

statement 

Lurrent serine cast 

est cost 

statement 

c in Present Value 

value ion as at the start of the year 
wren Oost 

due to Financial 

io 

Change in fair value of plan assets 

BS 

i= Return on Assets 

Fair value of assets a5 at the end of the 

  

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets 
  

  

    

Present value obhoalion a§ al the ered of the year 2,662 2.060 

Fair value of plan assets as al the end of the year 1.621 1.649 

Net llability/[asset) recognized In balance sheet 4,047 oii       
  

Amount nised in the statement of Other Incame 
on 

Of 

         

Breakup of Actuarial gain/loss: 
  

  

  

  

  

  

    

Actuarial (gainvloss on-arsing trom change in damographic assumption = - 

Actuarial (gain Voss ‘on arsing fram Ghange in financial assumption 103 42 

Actuarial (gain joss on ansing from experience adjustment (141i 65 

Assumptions March 34,2025 March 31 2024 
Disecunt rate 6.45% F.10% 

Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%)       
  

 



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 

Amount in Fis. ‘000 
  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Sensitivity analysis for Gratuity 

al 

a fo 1 

b due of 1 

of the Increase 

Present value of at the end of the 

a 1 

b fo decrease of 1 

of the in withdrawal rates 

a} in due to ease of 7% 

b due to decrease of 1% 

  

The Sensitivily analysis prasented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligatian as itis 
unlikely thet the change iin the assumptinns would occur in isolation of one anolher as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 

There is no change in the method of valuation forthe priarperiad. 

Effect of plan on Entity's future Cash Flows 

Expected contribution dunng the nextannual reporting pernod 

  

Particulars Gratuity 2024-25 
The Company's best estimate of contribution during the next year 
  

      
  

Note 38 Financial instruments and other related disclosures 

i. Capital Management 
The Companies capital management is drivan by group's policy to maintain a sound capital base to support the continued 

development of its business; The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a prudent balance between differant components of the 

group's capital. The Management monitors the caplial structure and the net financial debt at indlyidual currency level. Net financial 

debt is defined as currant and non-current financial labilities lass cash and cash equivalents and current investments, The debt 
equity ratio highlights the ability of a business to rapay its debts. The Company complies wilh afl statutory raquireament as per the 

extant regulations, 

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars March 34,2025 March 34,2024 

Equity Share Capital 23,130 23,130 
Other Equity 16,577 21 B65, 
Total Equity (A) 39,707 44,995 
Short Tenm Borrowings (Gross Debt) (B) 14,578 10,089 
Long Term Borrowings (Gross Debt) (B) 1.360 B.072 
Total Capital (A+B) 55.645 Sh 156 

Gross Debt (B) as above 15,938 13,161 
Less: Gash and Cash Equivalents 52 20 
Less: Other Bank Balances 5,417 6.282 

Net Debt (C) 10.429 6.678 

Not Dabt to Equity (CIA) 0.26 O45 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

ij. Categories of Financial Instruments 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              
  

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 
Ranticulars Carrying Valua| Fair value | Carrying Value | Fair value 

A. Financial Assets 

(a) Measured at Amortised Cost 
i) Investments. 45 45 4&8 48 

i} Loans 126 126 65 65 

ii) Trade Recelvables 27,253 27,253 79,193 23,193 

iv) Gash and Cash Equivalants 5,508 5,509 6.483 G483 
|v) Other Financial Assets 49,234 49,234 Ariz 47212 
Sub-total 82,170 62,170 83,004 43,004 

(b) Measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss 

i) Investments 10,692 10,692 8.135 8,135 
Sub-total 10,692 10,692 8,135 8,135 | 

Total Financial Assets 92,862 92,862 91,136 91,136 
8. Financial Liabilities 
(a) Measured at Amortised Cost 
i) Borrowings 15,933 15,938 13,161 13,161 

fi) Trade Payables 7 G62 7,662 7 808 7,806 
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 928 926 a1 B21 
Total Financial Liabilities 24,528 24,528 21,600 21,600 

iii, Fair Value Hierarchy 
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for Identical assets. or labilities 
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is dirently or 

Indirectly observable 
Lavel 3 — Valuation techniques torwhich the dowest level input that Is signiitant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 

The following table tepresents the fair value hierarchy of Finandial Assels and Financial Liabilities maasiited at Fair Value on a 

recurring basis - 
  

  

Particulars Fair Value Hierarch March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Level 
Financial Assets 

Investment Levelt 10,644 087 

{iv} Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Financial risk factors 
The Company's ectivittes expose it io a variely of financial risks: market risk, liquidity risk-& credit risk. The Company's focus is to 
foresee the unpredictability of financial markeis and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance, The 
Company uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures, 

(A) Market risk 

Market risk comprises interest rate risk & foreign currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and 
borrowings inforeign currencies, 

(i) Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company constantly monitors the credit markeis and rebalances ifs financing strategies to achieve an 
optimal maturity profile and financing cost 

{ii} Foreign Currency Risks 

The fluctuation in foreign cumency exchange: rates may have a potential impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss and Equity, 

wWhereany transactions are denominated ina cumency other than the functional cumency ofthe Company. 

The Company's Exchange Rate Risk exposure is primarily due to Trade Payables, Trade Receivables and Borrowings in the form 
of Buyers’ Credit denaminated in foreign currencies. The Campany uses foreign exchange and forward contracts primarily to 
hedge foreign exchange exposure. 

An apprecation/depraciaton of the foreign currencies with respect to Tunctonal currency of the Gompany by 1% would result inan 

dacrease/increase in the Company's Nel Profil before Tax by approximately Rs Nil for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 

2024: Rs Nil) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(8) Liquidity Risk 

Ultimate responsibility for lkqjuidity isk management rests with the Board of Directors. which has established an appropriate 

liquidity risk management framework for ihe management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and lang-tenm funding and 

liquidity management requiraments. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking faciittes and 
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profilas of 
finangial assets and liabilities: 

(C) Gredit Risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk thata counterparty will defaullon its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to Ihe Company. 
Majority of ihe Company's transactions ara seamed in cash or cash equivalents, Tha trade racewables comprisa mainly of 

recelyables from Corporate customers and Gavemment Undertakings. The Corporate Customers are enterprises with moderate 

to good credit ratings. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables is considered low, Credit 

risk has always been managed by the campany through credit approvals, establishing credil limits and oontinugusly monitoring the 
creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the narmal course of business, 

Note 39 Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year 

Key Management Personnel Relatives of Key Management Personnel 

Mrs Sharma Mrs Tara Devi Sharma 
Mir Himanshu Sharma Mrs Deepthi Sharma 
Mra Jaya Sharma 

Mr Sukanta Bhattacharjee Companies aver which KMP and (heir relatives have significant influence 
Ms Ritu Damani Bhagawati Steel (P} Ltd 

Dindayal Raminup Amount in Rs. ‘000 Related Party Transactions 
  

  

  

                  

ri Compantes over which KMP 
R 

Key Management Personnel nlaiiees of Key and their relatives have 
Management Personnel ae 

Particulars significant influence 

March March March March March March 
34.2025 31,2024 31,2025 31,2024 31,2025 a4 2024 

Direciors' Remuneration 4.440 114100 

Directors’ Sitting Fees. 35 25 
Remuneration paid ta KMP 503 490) 

Other Perquisites 
Rent paid 1,526 1253 Od Bik 

Reimbursement of Salanes.& Others 

Balance as at year end 
Net Recelvable! (Payable) (4,882) 1.184 (1,435) (S31) afd RAS 

Note 40 Disclosure Requirement of (Segment Reporting) POMS RIES: Ee 

34-Mar-2025 34-Mar-2024 
1, Segment Revenue 

Gases VW1e14 af 215 
Power 6,150 3,878 
Total (a) 16,764 71,093 
Unallacabie revenue (b} 

Total (a + b) 16,764 71,093 
2. Segment Resulls 

Gases {7.390} 7.084 
Power aoae 2,488 
Other unallocable expenses (net of unallocabhe incame] = - 
Total (3,868) G.572 
Interest & other charge 1,223 4,028 
Total Profit before tax (5.091) 6,544 
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3. Segment Assets 

Gases 

Power 

Others 

Total 

4, Segment Liabilities 
Gases 
Power 
Others 

Caplial & Resarves 

Total 

31-Mar-2025 

1,01,232 
a75 

351 
1,141,434 

Note 41 Previous year's figures have been rearranged! regrouped wherever necessary 

As per our report attached of even date 
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED 
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Ballabgarh 121004 (Haryana)



Bhagawati Oxygen Limited ATTENDANCE SLIP | 
(CIN No. L 74899HR1972PLC006203) 

Registered Office : Plot No. 5, Sector-25, Ballabhgarh-121 004, Haryana. 53rd Annual General Meeting 

Emai idl : botkol@globalbol.com; website : www.globalbol.com Friday, 26th September, 2025 

  

|] We hereby record my presence at the 53rd Annual General Meeting being held on Friday, 26th September, 2025 at the registered office of the Company at 3.00 p.m. 

  

Name of Proxy (in Block Letters) Signature of Shareholder / Proxy Present       

Please read the instructions given in the notice of the 53rd Annual General Meeting dated 30.05.2025. The remote e-voting period starts from 10:00 A.M. 
on Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 and ends at 05:00 P.M. on Thursday 25th September, 2025. At the end of the remote e-voting period, the portal 
where the votes are cast shall forthwith be blocked by NSDL. 

Signature of Shareholder / Proxy 
  x 

  

53rd Annual General Meeting Bhagawati Oxygen Limited PROXY FORM 
Friday, 26th September, 2025 (CIN No. L 74899HR1972PLC006203) 
Registered Office : Plot No. 5, Sector-25, Ballabhgarh-121 004, Haryana. Email id : bolkol@globalbol.com; website : www.globalbol.com 
  

l/ We, being the member(s), NOMING...........c.cccecccceseeecccesacsesseccesevecesescueeertene share of Bhagawati Oxygen Limited hereby appoint : 

(1) Ne Ole wwcrccacennenenmereummindneme miamameneansnieccereaacencenanc, PROUES SS i ccs caresUeeshoenenvreenesenunsovouseemerecer rovenvuncavnwn sonesnevinneauuncesienvasne 

ESAT Ll soe cnusrenstnenustanersnrinecicusynsiannnnianedlnnperatcneey meen etree Ererceenes SONAR Srey cescrite des ccensnnenracconciecerrerenserllomeceneennneneseme meaner: or failing him/her 

(2) NAME once cece ee seesceeeenee cope sueeeeesuvevessenaususenbenasayeeseeusavassspusanasusseaes PRTGP SS Be asicccsieepanses cesnssiessorsescsnunsesepweteeanererat aes aaeeind encencneeeoenteanee eonentene 

EMail LQ. cece este eeneeee ce enseeeenceneeaeerensesensesceateneneasteosesertengnesaeseveneentes SIQNatORG) «ol vecsrarsecissvasvsespesnsssasemenevanvnvaveraas aciesevints ot failing him/her 

(3B) NAM O oon. ceeeeeeseereceasectenseseeeseseaesseeseneapesetecentenaneusesesstuparaenavesanacensee PG ONESS. costae Re arnelnsese ssoreceuscc oan gnenpe ce rayecavecnyuananeaTesasunNeraeeeleueRNC ese 

Et 1 corer pesmrecacsueesy citscatins lead libeeceeenennnvsnonamzercesersurenne ca tees SIQGMature. oe ese ee cece ce se sesecseeaeseeeeseeseaeeeeacasaesees or failing him/her       

As my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 53rd Annual General Meeting of the Company, to 

be held on Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 03:00 p.m. at the registered office of the company and at any adjournment thereof in respect 
of such resolutions as are indicated below : 

  

reno. ven Resolution Proposed Please Tick 

  

Ordinary Business 
  

4 Adoption of Annual Accounts for the year ended 31°March, 2025 
  

2 Approval for re-appointment of a Director in place of Mr. Bipinbihari Lal (DIN: 01045250) retiring 

by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offering herself for re-appointment           

  

  

SIGME HHS. AY Of, cscsecesssecseessessnseeeesee 2025 

Member's Folio/DP ID-Client ID NO. ... cesses: SIGNETUPE OF SHALCHOEH(S)....ssssssesssssesssssssssssesevsssssssssvevesesnsessuevsvaveensese Affix 
Revenue 

Signature of Proxy holder(s)....ccccccsccsccsccscsccsscscsessceceesseseeccesceseensesereesceessescessesensen Stamp         
Note: 1. The proxy must be duly completed & deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less that 48 hours before the commencement of 

the meeting. The proxy need not be a member of the Company. \ 

2. For the Resolutions proposed, Explanatory Statement and Notes, Please refer to the Notice of the 53rd Annual General Meeting.


